ORIGINAL

PROPOSAL FOR
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

from
OneWorld Community
Health Centers, Inc.

SOLICITATION NUMBER:
RFP 6168 Z1

SUBMITTED:
December 3, 2019






REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR CONTRACTUAL SERVICES FORM

BIDDER MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING

By signing this Request for Proposal for Contractual Services form, the bidder guarantees compliance
with the procedures stated in this Solicitation, and agrees to the terms and conditions unless
otherwise indicated in writing and certifies that contractor maintains a drug free work place.

Per Nebraska’s Transparency in Government Procurement Act, Neb. Rev Stat § 73-603 DAS is required
to collect statistical information regarding the number of contracts awarded to Nebraska Contractors. This
information is for statistical purposes only and will not be considered for contract award purposes.

X __ NEBRASKA BIDDER AFFIDAVIT: Bidder hereby attests that bidder is a Nebraska Contractor.
“Nebraska Contractor” shall mean any bidder who has maintained a bona fide place of business and at
least one employee within this state for at least the six (6) months immediately preceding the posting date

of this Solicitation.

| hereby certify that | am a Resident disabled veteran or business located in a designated
enterprise zone in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. § 73-107 and wish to have preference, if applicable,
considered in the award of this contract.

| hereby certify that | am a blind person licensed by the Commission for the Blind & Visually
Impaired in accordance with Neb. Rev. Stat. §71-8611 and wish to have preference considered in the
award of this contract.

FORM MUST BE SIGNED USING AN INDELIBLE METHOD (NOT ELECTRONICALLY)

FIRM: OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.

COMPLETE ADDRESS: 4920 South 30" Street, Suite 103, Omaha, NE 68107 N
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 402-502-8842

FAX NUMBER: 402-991-5642

DATE: Decemb?r 2, 2019

SIGNATURE: ( Yedin. C ) Stole -
TYPED NAME & TITLE OF SIGNER: | Andrea Skolkin, Chief Executive Officer o
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Forvn A

...........



Form A

Bidder Proposal Point of Contact
Request for Proposal Number 6168 Z1

Form A should be completed and submitted with each response to this solicitation. This is intended to provide the State with
information on the bidder's name and address, and the specific person(s) who are responsible for preparation of the bidder's
response.

Preparation of Response Contact Information

Bidder Name: OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
4920 South 30™ Street, Suite 103

Bidder Address: Omaha, NE 68107

Contact Person & Title: Andrea Skolkin, Chief Executive Officer

E-mail Address: askolkin@oneworldomaha.org

Telephone Number (Office): 402-502-8842

Telephone Number (Cellular):

Fax Number: 402-991-5642

Each bidder should also designate a specific contact person who will be responsible for responding to the State if any
clarifications of the bidder's response should become necessary. This will also be the person who the State contacts to set
up a presentation/demonstration, if required.

Communication with the State Contact Information

Bidder Name: OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
) ) 4920 South 30" Street, Suite 103

Bidder Address: Omaha, NE 68107

Contact Person & Title: Andrea Skolkin, Chief Executive Officer

E-mail Address: askolkin@oneworldomaha.org

Telephone Number (Office): 402-502-8842

Telephone Number (Cellular):

Fax Number: 402-991-5642
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OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.

1. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

a.

CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION AND INFORMATION

Name:  OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
Address: 4920 South 30" Street, Suite 103, Omaha, NE 68107

OneWorld is a 501(c)(3) charitable organizations incorporated in Nebraska. OneWorld
was first organized to do business in 1970 as the Indian-Chicano Health Center.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Attached please find OneWorld’s most recent audited financial statements.

For a banking reference, please contact Kurt Grote at American National Bank. His contact
information is KGrote@anbank.com and (402) 399-5059. The mailing address is 8990
West Dodge Road, Omaha, NE 68114,

OneWorld is named in one medical claim in which we are represented by the U.S.
Attorney’s Office based on our status as a Federally Qualified Health Center. It does not
and will not have financial impact and is in the process of dismissal.

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

OneWorld does not anticipate any change in ownership or control of the company during
the twelve (12) months following the proposal due date.

OFFICE LOCATION

The locations responsible for performance include OneWorld’s corporate headquarters at
4920 South 30" Street, Omaha, NE 68107 and OneWorld’s minority health outreach
office at 2314 M Street, Omaha, NE 68107.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE STATE
OneWorld entered grant agreements with the State of Nebraska for the following:

Subaward 50757-Y3 to build and maintain Federally Qualified Health Centers
preparedness and response to bioterrorism, outbreaks of infectious diseases and other
public health threats and emergencies under the Federal Cooperative Agreement from the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Coordinating Office for Terrorism
Preparedness and Emergency Response from July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2020.

Subaward 46669-Y3 to develop and implement health systems change to increase
screening, diagnostic, and treatment rates for breast and cervical cancer; increase rates of
controlled hypertension; decrease obesity rates; and refer women to lifestyle programs and
community resources to support modifiable risk behaviors in women 40-74 years of age.
Activities shall target those women experiencing disparate health outcomes, and increase
colon cancer screening rates in men and women 50-74 years of age from June 30, 2018 —
June 29, 2020.



Subaward 30664-Y3 to support activities related to immunization with the goal of

increasing coverage rates among eligible populations from January 1, 2016 — December
31, 2016.

Subaward 47457-Y3 to support activities related to immunization with the goal of
increasing coverage rates among eligible populations from January 1, 2019 — June 30,
2019, and July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

Subaward 25993-Y3 to implement a Minority Health Initiative in the Congressional
District 1 portion of Sarpy County from July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017.

Subaward 37123-Y3 to implement a Minority Health Initiative in the Congressional
District 1 portion of Sarpy County from July 1, 2017 - December 31, 2019.

Subaward 38013-Y3 for the purpose of enhancing education and outreach to adolescents
from February 12, 2018 — June 30, 2018.

Subaward 47952-Y3 to engage adolescents which leads to their increased utilization of
reproductive health (ARH) services from February 1, 2019 - July 31, 2019.

Subaward 51726-Y3 to engage adolescents through outreach and education which leads to
their increased utilization of reproductive health (ARH) services from August 1, 2019 —
June 30, 2020.

BIDDER’S EMPLOYEE RELATIONS TO STATE

No employees of the State of Nebraska are employed by OneWorld or are Subcontractors
of OneWorld.

CONTRACT PERFORMANCE
OneWorld has not had a contract terminated for default during the past five (5) years.

OneWorld has not has had a contract terminated for convenience, non-performance, non-
allocation of funds, or any other reason during the past five (5) years.

SUMMARY OF BIDDER’S CORPORATE EXPERIENCE

Please see attached summary matrix listing the bidder’s previous projects similar to this
solicitation in size, scope, and complexity.

SUMMARY OF BIDDER’S PROPOSED PERSONNEL/MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

OneWorld’s Minority Health Outreach Manager Vivian Garcia will manage the Diabetes
Case Management project. Ms. Garcia will supervise Maria Vargas and Laura Hernandez
as the thewo Community Health Promoters who serve as community health workers known
as promotoras. Ms. Garcia will collaborate with OneWorld’s Diabetes Case Manager
Wendy Canada and report to OneWorld’s Chief Operating Officer Joel Dougherty, who
reports to Chief Executive Officer Andrea Skolkin. OneWorld’s Minority Health Outreach
Manager, Community Health Promoters, and participating physicians will refer and
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support minority patients in lowering their HbAlc rates. OneWorld’s Finance staff
overseen by Chief Financial Officer Tom McLaughlin will prepare the required financial
reports. Attached please find resumes for Minority Health Outreach Manager Vivian
Garcia, Community Health Promoters Maria Vargas and Laura Hernandez, and Diabetes
Case Manager Wendy Canada.

OneWorld possesses the capacity to implement the Diabetes Case Management project in
Sarpy County. From July 2013 to December 2019, OneWorld has recruited and trained
volunteer promotoras, screened and educated minority patients with chronic diseases, and
provided case management to patients in Sarpy County. Since its start in 1970, OneWorld
has cared for minority populations facing cultural, linguistic and financial barriers to health
care. Located in Southeast Omaha where 51% of the city’s Hispanic population lives,
OneWorld is the only primary care clinic where a majority of the staff are bilingua! and
bicultural in English and Spanish. In 2018, OneWorld cared for 46,292 patients, and 65%
of the patients were minorities. OneWorld cares for immigrants and refugees including
adults in South Omaha’s Hispanic community, Mexican Nationals served by the Mexican
Consulate, individuals resettled by Lutheran Family Services, and families with children
who attend Omaha Public Schools. This population includes immigrants from Mexico and
Central America and refugees from Afghanistan, Bhutan, Burma, Burundi, Congo,
Ethiopia, Iraq, Liberia Somalia and Sudan.

OneWorld will provide diabetes case management, medical referrals and ongoing
communication in face-to-face meetings and by telephone and e-mail. OneWorld
maintains formal relationships with the University of Nebraska Medical Center and
Creighton University School of Medicine. OneWorld also maintains a formal partnership
with the Consulate of Mexico for the health window where promotoras provide health
education and screenings. OneWorld maintains relationships with the Sarpy Cass Health
Department as well as the Douglas County Health Department for immunization, WIC
(Women, Infant and Children) supplemental nutrition, and chronic disease management
services. OneWorld maintains relationships with Lutheran Family Services, Metropolitan
Community College, CHI Health, Nebraska AIDS Project, and Nebraska Methodist Health
System for community events, patient referrals, and service coordination for patients with
chronic diseases including diabetes. OneWorld holds informal relationships with homeless
shelters such as the Stephen Center, food pantries across Omaha, legal clinics including
the Immigrant Legal Center, and employment agencies such as Heartland Workforce
Solutions to address social determinants of health.

SUBCONTRACTORS

OneWorld does not attend to subcontract any part of its performance.
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SEIM JOHNSON

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
Omaha, Nebraska:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of OneWorld Community Health Centers,
Inc. and Affiliates (OneWorld), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of February 28, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the
financial statements).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

t A:tor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabie assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order'tc design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of OneWorld as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations, changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Sebm Johmnson, LLY (8061 Dart Street, Sulte 206 Omuaha, NE4E022-4722  Tek 402,320.06580 Fox 40235305108  Sviminbnsorncom



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements, in 2019 OneWorld adopted the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Update 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities). Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
consolidating information included on pages 28 and 29 is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than
to present the financial position, changes in net assets, and cash flows of the individual entities and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 2, 2019 on our
consideration of OneWorld's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of OneWorld's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering OneWorld's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Seim JodaSon,  LLP

Omaha, Nebraska,
July 2, 2019.



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Balance Sheets
February 28, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables -
Patient, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $813,670 in 2019 and $1,164,996 in 2018
Contributions
Grants and contracts
Due from Livestock Commons, LLC
Other
Supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Due from Livestock Commons, LLC
Contributions receivable, noncurrent
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Deferred lease expense
Refundable advances
Long term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See notes to consolidated financial statements

$

2019 2018

3,614,976 2,419,788
10,423,213 9,520,734
1,274,160 1,648,323
1,147,990 876,826
1,866,504 1,528,822
- 182,940
40,608 68,646
242,882 238,756
441,466 567,615
19,051,798 17,052,450
3,687,318 1,995,166
989,081 788,160
- 50,000
19,790,490 11,237,922
43,518,688 31,123,698

173,657 =
913,459 954,242
1,908,736 1,569,514
936,833 684,372
3,932,685 3,208,128
192,433 215,711

16,429 -
4,940,013 196,000
9,081,560 3,619,839
30,790,780 24,855,595
3,646,348 2,648,264
34,437,128 27,503,859
43,518,688 31,123,698




OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

2019
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUE:

Net patient service revenue $ 22,435,058 - 22,435,058

Provision for bad debts (1,278,837) -- (1,278,837)

Net patient service revenue less provision for bad debts 21,156,221 - 21,156,221

Grants and contracts revenue 12,691,951 1,755,886 14,447,837

Contributions 5,838,506 3,879,675 9,718,181

Rental revenue 157,319 -- 157,319

Other 883,174 - 883,174

Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 4,320,096 (4,320,096) -

Total revenue 45,047,267 1,315,465 46,362,732
EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages 21,408,338 - 21,408,338

Employee benefits 4,513,891 - 4,513,891

Professional fees and purchased services 2,624,015 - 2,624,015

Supplies and other 14,177,599 - 14,177,699

Rent 630,034 - 630,034

Depreciation 997,112 - 997,112

Interest 29,562 -- 29,562

Total expenses 44,380,551 - 44,380,551
OPERATING INCOME 666,716 1,315,465 1,982,181
NONOPERATING GAINS:

Investment income, net 351,315 - 351,315
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 1,018,031 1,315,465 2,333,496
CHANGE IN NET UNREALIZED LOSSES ON OTHER THAN

TRADING SECURITIES (72,951) - (72,951)
NET ASSETS RELEASED FOR PURCHASE OF

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 317,381 (317,381} -
CONTRIBUTION RECEIVED UPON ACQUISTION OF

LIVESTOCK EXCHANGE BUILDING, LLC 4,672,724 - 4,672,724
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 5,935,185 998,084 6,933,269
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 24,855,595 2,648,264 27,503,859
NET ASSETS, end of year $ 30,790,780 3,646,348 34,437,128

See notes to consolidated financial statements



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

For the Year Ended February 28, 2018

REVENUE:
Net patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue less provision for bad debts
Grants and contracts revenue
Contributions
Other
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations
Total revenue
EXPENSES:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and other
Rent
Depreciation
Total expenses
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING GAINS:
Investment income, net

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET UNREALIZED GAINS ON OTHER THAN
TRADING SECURITIES

NET ASSETS RELEASED FOR PURCHASE OF
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, beginning of year, as reclassified (Note 18)

NET ASSETS, end of year

2018

Without Donor

With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

$ 21,016,475 - 21,016,475
(2,119,166) -- (2,119,166)
18,897,309 -- 18,897,309
13,607,294 661,760 14,269,054
5,243,127 3,560,161 8,803,288
398,381 - 398,381

3,476,435 (3,476,435) --
41,622,546 745,486 42,368,032
20,319,775 - 20,319,775
4,032,540 - 4,032,540
2,484,840 - 2,484 840
12,864,902 - 12,864,902
743,687 - 743,687
954,711 -- 954,711
41,400,455 -- 41,400,455
222,091 745,486 967,577
141,685 - 141,685
363,776 745,486 1,109,262
711,202 - 711,202

45,323 (45,323) =
1,120,301 700,163 1,820,464
23,735,294 1,948,101 25,683,395
$ 24,855,595 2,648,264 27,503,859

See notes to consolidated financial statements



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expense
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

Program Services Supporting Services

Other General and Rental 2019

Medical Dental Pharmacy Programs Total Administrative _ Fundraising Total Expenses Total
Salaries and wages $ 14,756,088 1,406,869 1,458,128 1,872,062 19,493,147 1,693,149 208,100 1,901,249 13,942 21,408,338
Employee benefits 3,115,457 318,910 261,231 444 339 4,139,937 320,558 50,415 370,973 2,981 4,513,891
Professional fees and purchased services 2,144,760 6,343 714 78,934 2,230,751 306,781 36,554 343,335 49,929 2,624,015
Supplies and other 5,406,346 510,522 6,367,797 260,288 12,544,953 1,447,215 144,422 1,591,637 41,009 14,177,599
Rent 348,238 148,007 31,512 57,563 585,320 44714 - 44714 - 630,034
Depreciation 584,593 137,754 61,920 44,788 829,055 62,817 - 62,817 105,240 997,112
Interest - - - — - - - - 29,562 29,562
Total expenses $ 26,355,482 2,528,405 8,181,302 2,757,974 39,823,163 3,875,234 439,491 4,314,725 242,663 44,380,551

See notes to consolidated financial statements



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expense

For the Year Ended February 28, 2018

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and other

Rent

Depreciation

Total expenses

3

$

Program Services

Supporting Services

Other General and 2018

Medical Dental Pharmacy Programs Total Administrative _ Fundraising Total Total
14,153,339 1,293,308 1,346,489 1,649,178 18,442,314 1,636,340 241,121 1,877,461 20,319,775
2,803,387 273,436 243,576 383,770 3,704,169 285,879 42,492 328,371 4,032,540
2,009,882 6,496 12,191 116,745 2,145,314 321,200 18,326 339,526 2,484,840
5,254,120 492,764 5,620,860 221,404 11,589,148 1,156,847 118,907 1,275,754 12,864,902
452,002 147,983 33,007 58,312 691,304 52,383 - 52,383 743,687
648,433 146.738 61,340 48,925 905.436 49,275 - 49,275 954,711
25,321,163 2,360,725 7.317.463 2,478,334 37,477,685 3,501,924 420,846 3,922,770 41,400,455

See notes to consolidated financial statements



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended February 28, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 6,933,269 1,820,464
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in
operating activities -
Change in realized and unrealized gains con investments (48,299) (688,838)
Depreciation 997,112 954,711
Amortization of debt issuance costs 81 -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 349,005
Restricted support (5,635,561) (3,560,161)
Contribution received upon acquisition of Livestock Exchange
Building, LLC (4,672,724) -
(Increase) decrease in assets -
Patient receivables, net 374,163 65,154
Grants and contracts receivable (337,682) 167,624
Due from Livestock Commons, LLC (32,026) (32,353)
Other recelvables 91,178 (33,008)
Supplies (4,126) 8,703
Prepaid expenses 127,641 (40,157)
Estimated third-party payor settlements - 11,660
Increase (decrease) in liabilities -
Accounts payable (161,173) (94,625)
Accrued expenses 100,596 (590,347)
Deferred revenue 249,166 20,636
Deferred lease expense (23,278) 10,771
Net cash used in operating activities (2,041,663) (1,630,758)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Deposits to from short-term investments, net (854,180) (998,274)
Deposits to from assets limited as to use, net (1,087,806) (834,886)
Amounts received from Livestock Commons, LLC 14,045 28,428
Acquisition of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC, net of cash paid 477,173 -
Purchase of property and equipment (570,317) (680,799)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,021,085) (2,485,531)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on long term debt (156,461) -
Proceeds from restricted support 5,414,397 3,709,930
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,257,936 3,709,930
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,195,188 (406,359)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 2,419,788 2,826,147
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 3,614,976 2,419,788

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $ 29,481

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
OneWorld acquired Livestock Exchange Building, LLC by transferring cash of $1,510. In conjunction with
the acquisition, liabilities were assumed and a contribution was received as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired $ 10,168,826
Less liabilities assumed (5.494,592)
Less cash paid upon acquisition (1,510)
Total contribution received $ 4,672,724

See notes to consolidated financial statements



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
February 28, 2019 and 2018

()

Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a description of the organization and a summary of significant accounting policies of
OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates (OneWorld). These policies are in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

A.

Description of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates is located in Omaha, Nebraska, and is a
Nebraska not-for-profit community health center. OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
provides physician and related health care services through clinics in the local area. OneWorld
Community Health Centers, Inc. is the parent company of the following entities:

e  OneWorld Community Builders, LLC — A wholly owned subsidiary created for the purposes
of managing and distributing funds in relation to the Livestock building campus expansion.

e OneWorld Exchange, LLC — A wholly owned subsidiary created for the purposes of
managing and distributing funds in relation to the Livestock building campus expansion.

e Livestock Exchange Building, LLC — A wholly owned subsidiary established to acquire,
develop, and construct a 102 unit multifamily residential low income rental housing
community, along with approximately 40,000 square feet of commercial space, located in
Omaha, Nebraska. Livestock Exchange Building, LLC has entered into an Extended Use
Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants with the Nebraska Investment
Finance Authority, which restricts the use of the property to low-income and very low-
income families, as defined, for twenty years after the close of the compliance period, as
defined.

Effective January 1, 2019, OneWorld Exchange, LLC entered into a purchase agreement
to become owner of 100% membership interest in Livestock Exchange Building, LLC (Note
16). Amounts attributable to the period January 1, 2019 to February 28, 2019 are included
in the financial statements. .
It is the intent of management and the sponsor to operate the housing project under the
terms and the conditions specified above.

The financial statements include the accounts and activities of these organizations. Significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

OneWorld is also a member of Livestock Commons, LLC with a 0.01% interest. Livestock
Commons, LLC is a Nebraska limited liability company which was formed to develop a low-income
housing tax credit project constructed in the Livestock Exchange campus buildings (Note 10).

Industry Environment

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such
as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements,
reimbursements for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Violations of
these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs
together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for
patient services previously billed.
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Management believes that OneWorld is in compliance with government laws and regulations as
they apply to the areas of fraud and abuse. While no regulatory inquiries have been made which
are expected to have a material effect on OneWorld's financial statements, compliance with such
laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as
regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statements of cash flows include investments of
highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less, excluding assets
limited as to use. At February 28, 2019 and 2018, cash equivalents consisted primarily of money
market accounts.

E. Patient Receivables, Net

OneWorld reports patient receivables for services rendered at net realizable amounts from third-
party payors, patients and others. OneWorld provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and
contractual adjustments based upon a review of outstanding receivables, payor classes and aging
categories, historical collection information and existing economic conditions. As a service to the
patient, OneWorld bills third-party payors directly and bills the patient when the patient’s liability is
determined. Patient accounts receivable are due in full when billed. Accounts are considered
delinquent and subsequently written off as bad debts based on individual credit evaluation and
specific circumstances of the account.

OneWorld also maintains a patient financial assistance policy as described in Note 1M.
F. Supplies

Supplies are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally using
the first-in, first-out method.

G. Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include the following:

By Board for Specific Purposes - Periodically, the OneWorld Board of Directors has set aside
assets for specific purposes over which the Board retains control and may, at its discretion,
subsequently use for other purposes.

By Donor - These funds have been restricted by donors for specific capital improvements and
operating expenses.

Under Operating Agreement — These funds are restricted to use under terms of the operating
agreement for Livestock Building Exchange, LLC.
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H. Investments

All investments in debt and equity securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance
sheets. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest
and dividends) is included in excess of revenue over expenses unless donors or the law restricts
the income or loss.

Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of
revenue over expenses unless the investments are trading securities. During 2019 and 2018, there
were no investment declines that were determined to be other-than-temporary.

I Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment acquisitions are reported at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method based upon the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset.
OneWorld malntains a capitalization policy of $5,000. The useful lives of property and equipment
for purposes of computing depreciation are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5 - 40 years
Equipment and furnishings 3 ~15years
Vehicles 5 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as support without
donor restrictions and are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses, unless explicit
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported support with donor restrictions. Absent
explicit donor stipulations about how long these long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations
of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in
service.

OneWorld's long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of expected
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized.

J. Deferred Lease Expense

OneWorld has entered into operating lease agreements for one of its facilities on its main campus
and for several of its satellite clinics, which expire on various dates through September 30, 2027.
The monthly lease payments increase periodically over the term of the leases; however, OneWorld
is recognizing lease expense on a straight-line basis. The difference between the straight-line lease
expense and scheduled lease payments is included in the financial statements as deferred lease
expense.

K. Net Assets

The financial statements report the changes in and totals of each net asset class based on the
existence or absence of donor restrictions, as described below:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net assets not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
OneWorld. Net assets without donor restrictions include undesignated net assets and net
assets subject to designation by the Board of Directors.

11
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Net assets with donor restrictions are net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the
passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity.
Donor imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated
time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been
fuffilled, or both.

L. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which OneWorld
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients,
third-party payors, and others, including variable consideration for estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in
future periods, as final settlements are determined.

M. Patient Financial Assistance

To fulfill its mission of community service, OneWorld provides financial assistance to patients who
meet certain criteria under its patient financial assistance policy. Because OneWorld does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as patient financial assistance, they are not
reported as net patient service revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and changes
in net assets. See Note 3 for disclosures relating to patient financial assistance.

OneWorld is dedicated to providing comprehensive healthcare services to all segments of society,
including the aged and otherwise economically disadvantaged. In addition, OneWorld provides a
variety of community health services at or below cost.

N. Rental Revenue

Rental revenue attributable to residential operating leases is recognized when due from residents,
generally upon the first day of each month for periods of up to one year, and are considered
operating leases. Advance receipts of rental income will be deferred until earned. Other income
results from fees for late payments, cleaning, damages and laundry facilities and is recognized
when earned.

Resident rent charges for the current month are due on the first of the month. Residents who are
evicted or move-out are charged with damages and/or cleaning fees, if applicable. Resident
receivables consist of amounts due for rental income the charges for damages and/or cleaning
fees. Interest is not accrued on outstanding resident receivable balances. Management reviews its
outstanding resident receivables on a regular basis and recognized an allowance for the
outstanding resident receivables over 60 days. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts
recognized at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

0. Donor-Restricted Gifts
Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated at cost. Conditional promises to give and indications of

intentions to give are reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as
support with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their use. ’
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When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose of
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions
are met within the same year as received are reported as contributions without donor restrictions in
the accompanying financial statements.

P. Donated Services and Supplies

OneWorld receives a substantial amount of services and supplies donated by healthcare
professionals. When the value of donated services from volunteer doctors, nurses and other
healthcare professionals is ascertainable, they are reflected at fair value in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets as revenue and expenses. The value of these
contributions is as follows:

2019 2018
Professional fees $ 329,293 348,525
Pharmacy and medical supplies 5,263,643 4,808,078
$ 5,592,936 5,156,603

Q. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. The financial statements report
certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function of OneWorld. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. OneWorld allocates salaries and related benefits based on an estimate of
employee time spent. OneWorld allocates occupancy expenses on a weighted average of
employee time spent and square footage, and other expenses are allocated by time and effort or
are directly assigned to a functional classification.

R. Group Health Insurance Costs

OneWorld is self-insured under its employee group health program, up to certain limits. Included in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets is a provision
for premiums for excess coverage and payments for claims including estimates of the ultimate
costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not yet reported at year-end.

S. Advertising Expense
OneWorld follows the policy of charging the costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expenses for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 were $285,9893 and
$277,698, respectively.

T. Compensated Absences
Paid time off, which includes vacation, vests at 100% of accrued hours and may be accumulated
by an employee at a maximum amount of 240 hours. Paid time off expense is accrued as an

expense and a liability as it is earned. Paid time off expenditures are recognized to the extent they
are earned during the year and the vested amount is recognized as a current liability.

13
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u. Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets includes excess of revenue
over expenses as a performance indicator. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions that
are excluded from the performance indicator, consistent with industry practice, include change in
unrealized gains and losses on other than trading securities, and grants and contributions of long-
lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restriction, were to be
used for the purposes of acquiring such assets).

V. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, OneWorld purchases legal, investment management, and
similar services from organizations with employees or partners represented on OneWorld's Board
of Directors. Each member of the Board of Directors is required to complete a disclosure statement
annually with regard to any possible conflicts of interest.

Effective July 1, 2010, OneWorld joined the Heartland Community Health Network (the Network) to
assist in the development of Electronic Health Records (EHR) for the Network members. Members
of the Network include:

OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.

All Care Health Center, Inc.

Midtown Health Center

Charles Drew Health Center, Inc.

Heartland Health Center, Inc.

Community Health Centers of Southeast lowa, Inc.
Cross Timbers Health Clinics, Inc. DBA AccelHealth
Community Healith Development, Inc.

Frontera Healthcare Network, Inc.

Members of the Network agreed to participate for a minimum of five years with each member
paying a portion of the total expenses based on an agreed upon calculation. OneWorld's portion of
these expenses totaled $277,165 and $266,188 for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Ww. Income Taxes

OneWorld is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from federal and Nebraska state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the Code. The Internal Revenue Service has established standards to be met to
maintain tax-exempt status. In general, such standards require OneWorld to meet a community
benefit standard and comply with various laws and regulations.

Livestock Building Exchange, LLC is a limited liability company wholly owned by OneWorld and is a
disregarded entity for income tax purposes.

OneWorld accounts for uncertainties in accounting for income tax assets and liabilities using
guidance included in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Cadification (ASC) Topic 740, Income Taxes. OneWorld recognizes the effect of income tax
positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. At February 28, 2019
and 2018, OneWorld had no uncertain tax positions accrued.
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X.

Change in Accounting Principle

OneWorld adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2016-14 Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statement of Not-for-Profit Entities in 2018. This ASU made several
changes to accounting and financial reporting standards for not-for-profit entities related to net
assets, and disclosure requirements.

See Note 18 for additional information regarding the impact of these changes in OneWorld's
financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606), requiring an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it
expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The updated
standard will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) when it becomes effective and permits the use of either a full retrospective or
retrospective with cumulative effect transition method. The updated standard will be effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. OneWorld currently anticipates
adopting the standard using the full retrospective method to restate each prior reporting period
presented.

On June 21, 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2018-08, Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Confributions
Received and Contributions Made. This update serves to clarify the scope and accounting
guidance for contributions received in consideration of the implications related to ASU 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The amendments in ASU 2018-08 serve to
improve guidance on determining whether a transfer of assets is a contribution or an exchange
transaction and if a contribution is conditional that would prevent recognition. As a result of this
update, it is expected that more grants will be accounted for as either contributions or conditional
contributions instead of exchange transactions. For transactions in which OneWorld is the
recipient, the update will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.
Effectively, this will be applicable for OneWorld for fiscal years ending on or after December 31,
2019. OneWorld is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on
the financial statements.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230). The
update addresses diversity in practice as to how restricted cash is presented on the statement of
cash flows. The update indicates that amounts generally described as restricted cash should be
included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The update will be effective for
OneWorld for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with early application permitted.
OneWorld is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on the
organization has a leas

In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in this ASU
supersedes the leasing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are
required to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases with
terms longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with
classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of operations. The new
standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. OneWorld is currently evaluating the impact of the pending adoption of
the new standard on the financial statements.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2019
reporting format.
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(2)

AA. Subsequent Events

OneWorld considered events occurring through July 2, 2019 for recognition or disclosure in the
financial statements as subsequent events. That date is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Patient Service Revenue

OneWorld recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients who have third-
party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. See summary of payment
arrangements below. For uninsured patients that do not qualify for financial assistance, OneWorld
recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for services provided. On the basis of historical
experience, a significant portion of OneWorld's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, OneWorld records a significant provision for bad debts related to uninsured
patients in the period the services are provided.

Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts (but before the provision for bad
debts), recognized in the year from these major payor sources is as follows:

Year Ended February 28, 2019

Commercial
Medicaid Medicare Insurance Self Pay Total
Gross patient charges 3 17,480,746 1,262,058 8,342,396 20,206,243 47,291,443
Less: contractual allowances
and discounts 5,534,239 1,024,783 4,131,016 14,166,347 24,856,385
Net patient service revenue 5 11,946,507 237,275 4,211,380 6,039,896 22,435,058
Year Ended February 28, 2018
Commercial
Medicaid Medicare Insurance Self Pay Total
Gross patient charges $ 17,317,992 1,167,261 6,793,861 18,153,766 43,432,880
Less: contractual allowances
and discounts 6,492,452 991,717 2,697,302 12,234,934 22,416,405
Net patient service revenue $ 10,825,540 175,544 4,096,559 5,918,832 21,016,475

Oneworld has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to OneWorld at amounts
different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors
follows:

Medicare. Covered Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries have historically been paid based on a cost reimbursement methodology up to certain
limits. Effective October 1, 2014, Medicare now pays FQHC's under a prospective payment system.
OneWorld is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement determined
after submission of an annual cost report by OneWorld and audit thereof by the Medicare.
Administrative Contractor. Services not covered under the FQHC benefit are paid based on established
fee schedules.
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Q)

The "Budget Control Act of 2011” requires, among other things, mandatory across-the-board reductions
in Federal spending, also known as sequestration. In general, Medicare claims with dates of service or
dates of discharge on or after April 1, 2013, incur a two percent reduction in Medicare payment.

Medicaid. Covered FQHC services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per visit.

OneWorld has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for reimbursement under these
agreements includes discounts from established charges, prospectively determined daily rates and fee
schedule amounts.

Net patient service revenue, as reflected the accompanying statement of operations and changes in net
assets, consists of the following as of February 28, 2019:

2019 2018

Gross patient charges:
Medical services $ 36,245,191 33,849,001
Dental services 5,527,591 5,363,079
Pharmacy services 5,518,661 4,220,800
Total gross patient charges 47,291,443 43,432,880
Less contractual adjustments and discounts 24,856,385 22,418,405
Net patient service revenue $ 22,435,058 21,016,475

Revenue from the Medicare and state sponsored Medicaid programs accounts for approximately 54% and
53% of OneWorld’s net patient service revenue for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
will change materially in the near term.

3408 Drug Pricing Program

OneWorld participates in the 340B Drug Pricing Program (340B Program) enabling OneWorld to receive
discounted prices from drug manufacturers on outpatient pharmaceutical purchases and enter into certain
contracts with unrelated pharmacies who provide certain prescriptive drugs to OneWorld outpatients. This
program is overseen by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Office of Pharmacy
Affairs (OPA). HRSA is currently conducting routine audits of these programs at healthcare organizations
and increasing its compliance monitoring processes. Laws and regulations governing the 340B Program
are complex and subject to interpretation and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that material
changes to financial statement amounts related to the 340B Program could occur in the near future. During
2019 and 2018, OneWorld recognized $421,942 and $314,657, respectively, of pharmacy revenue related
to the 340B Program contracts with unrelated pharmacies.

Patient Financial Assistance

OneWorld provides patient financial assistance to patients who are financially unable to pay for the
healthcare services they receive. It is the policy of OneWorld not to pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as patient financial assistance. Accordingly, OneWorld does not report these
amounts in patient service revenue. OneWorld determines the costs associated with providing patient
financial assistance by aggregating the direct and indirect costs, including salaries, benefits, supplies, and
other operating expenses, based on the overall cost to charge ratio. The costs of caring for patients who
qualify under OneWorld's patient financial assistance policy for the years ended February 28, 2019 and
2018 were approximately $13,239,000 and $11,662,000, respectively.
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(5)

Grant and Contract Revenue

OneWorld is the recipient of a Consolidated Health Centers (CHC) grant from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration. The general purpose of the
grant is to provide expanded health care service delivery for residents of the Omaha, Nebraska area.
Terms of the grant generally provide for funding of OneWorld's operations based on an approved budget.
During the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, OneWorld received $6,928,863 and $6,969,972 in
grant funds related to the CHC grant, respectively.

OneWorld has a continuing relationship with The United Way of the Midlands that contributes funds to help
OneWorld to provide health care services to low-income and underserved patients in the Omaha, Nebraska
area. The United Way contributed $376,336 and $458,300 to OneWorld in the years ended February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

In addition to the above grants, OneWorld receives additional financial support from other federal, state and
private sources. Generally, such support requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in grant
agreements and must be renewed on an annual basis.

Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,614,976
Short-term investments 10,423,213
Receivables -
Patient, net 1,274,160
Contributions due within one year 1,147,990
Grants and contracts 1,866,504
Other 40,608
Assets limited as to use 3,687,318
Total financial assets 22,054,769
Less financial assets unavailable for general expenditures within one year:
Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions -
Assets limited as to use (3,141,031)
Board designations -
Designed for services and programs to reduce health disparities (546,287)
Total financial assets available within one year $ 18,367,451

OneWorld has certain assets limited as to use for contractual or donor restricted purposes (Note 6) which
are not available for general expenditure within the next year, but may be utilized in the next year for its
intended purpose.

The Board of Directors of OneWorld has designated $546,287 to be used for specific purposes. These

funds are not intended to be spent from, however, these amounts could be made available for expenditure
by an action of the Board of Directors, should that be necessary.
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OneWorld’s endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and funds designated by the Board
of Directors as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is restricted for specific purposes,
with the exception of the amounts available for general use. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not
available for general expenditure.

OneWorld's cash flows have seasonal variations during the year attributable to fund-raising activities or
year-end giving. To manage liquidity, OneWorld receives monthly draws from its endowment fund (in
accordance with investment policies approved by the Board of Directors). Additionally, OneWorld holds
significant funds in board-designated endowments, which have currently been designated for long-term
growth of the endowment fund. However, the Board may make the decision to release these funds for
operations at any time.

OneWorld’s liquidity management plan includes investing cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term
investments, certificates of deposit, and money market funds.

Investments, Including Assets Limlited as to Use

Investments, including assets limited as to use are recognized at fair value and the amounts as of February
28, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Assets limited as to use:
By Board —
Designated for services and programs to reduce health \
disparities $ 546,287 273,728
By Donor 2,498,193 1,721,438
Under Operating Agreement —
Replacement reserve 200,027 -
Operating reserve 236,117 -
Escrow deposits 189,762 -
Tenant security deposits 16,932 --
Total assets limited as to use 3,687,318 1,995,166
Short-term investments 10,423,213 9,520,734
$ 14,110,531 11,515,900

Investment return for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 is summarized as follows:

2019 2018
Interest and dividends $ 287,141 217,411
Investment expenses (57,076) (63,362)
Realized gains (losses), net 121,250 (22,364)
Change in unrealized (losses) gains, net (72,951) 711,202
Total investment return $ 278,364 852,887
Investment income, net of investment return $ 351,315 141,685
Reported separately as a change in unrestricted net assets (72,951) 711,202
$ 278,364 852,887
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) Fair Value

Fair Value Hierarchy

OneWorld applies FASB ASC Topic 820 for fair value measurements of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis.
FASB ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 Inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability either directly or indirectly through either corroboration or observed market
data.

Level 3 Inputs are inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability. Therefore, unobservable

inputs shall reflect the entity’'s own assumptions about the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk)
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value for each class of financial
instrument measured at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents and money market funds — The fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
consisting primarily of money market funds, is classified as Level 1 as these funds are valued using
quoted market prices.

Mutual funds — Mutual funds are classified as Level 1 as the fair value is the market value based on
quoted market prices, when available, or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers.

Bonds — Bonds are classified as Level 1 as the fair value is the market value based on quoted market
prices, when available, or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers.

For fiscal years ending February 28, 2019 and 2018, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assist and liabilities has been consistent.

20



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
February 28, 2019 and 2018

The following table presents the financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(including items that are required to be measured at fair value) at February 28, 2019 and 2018:

February 28, 2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets limited as to use -
Cash and cash equivalents $ 642,838 642,838 -~ -
Money market funds 3,044,480 3,044,480 -- -
Investments -
Money market funds 1,755,715 1,755,715 - -
Mutual funds -
Equities 4,919,900 4,919,900 - -
Fixed Income 2,018,514 2,018,514 - -
Bonds -
Corporate bonds 818,724 - 818,724 -
Municipal bonds 417,464 - 417 464 -
§ 13,617,635 12,381,447 1,236,188 --
Investments, including assets limited as to use - other:
Certificates of deposit 492,896
Total investments, including assets limited as to use $ 14,110,531

February 28, 2018

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets limited as to use -
Money market funds $ 1,995,166 1,995,166 - -
Investments -
Money market funds 609,980 609,980 - -
Mutual funds -
Equities 5,199,108 5,199,108 - --
Fixed Income 1,926,270 1,926,270 - -
Bonds -
Corporate bonds 862,925 - 862,925 -
Municipal bonds 435,371 - 435,371 -
$ 11,028,820 9,730,524 1,298,296 -
Investments, including assets limited as to use - other:
Certificates of deposit 487,080
Total investments, including assets limited as to use $ 11,515,900

OneWorld has outsourced the management of a majority of their investment portfolios to third-party
investment managers. Third-party investment managers follow OneWorld’s investment policies; however,
na restrictions on buying or selling specific securities are imposed. Therefore, OneWorld does not consider
any impairment loss to be temporary. Impairment losses are included with other revenue, net, and a new
cost basis is established for each security for which an impairment loss is recognized. There were no
impairment losses recognized for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018.
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(8)

(9)

(10)

Promises to Give

Included in contributions receivable as of February 28, 2019 and 2018 are the following unconditional
promises to give and conditional promises to give in which the conditions have been met.

2019 2018
Due within one year $ 1,147,990 876,826
Due in one to five years - 50,000
Contributions receivable 1,147,990 926,826
Less current portion 1,147,990 876,826
Contributions receivable, net of current portion $ - 50,000

In 2019 and 2018, promises to give were generated for capital purposes and for various program purposes.
Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment as of February 28, 2019 and 2018 is summarized as follows:

2019 2018

Buildings and improvements $ 16,956,149 8,077,053
Leasehold improvements 6,074,621 6,027,259
Equipment and furnishings 4,554,757 4,262,518
Vehicles 446,508 446,508
Construction in progress 354,352 23,369

Total property and equipment at cost 28,386,387 18,836,707
Less accumulated depreciation 8,695,897 7,698,785
Property and equipment, net $ 19,790,490 11,237,922

Depreciation expense of $997,112 and $954,711 for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, is included in the statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Costs included in construction in progress as of February 28, 2019, are primarily related to the dental
mobile. Estimated costs for the project are $380,000, which will be financed through private contributions
and existing cash reserves. Completion is expected to be in fiscal year 2020.

Investment in Livestock Commons, LLC
OneWorld is a member of Livestock Commons, LLC with a 0.01% interest. Livestock Commons, LLC is a
Nebraska limited liability company which was formed to develop an affordable housing project constructed

in the Livestock Exchange campus buildings. The project was financed through low income housing tax
credits through the Nebraska Investment Finance Authority.
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In connection with the affordable housing project, Livestock Commons, LLC entered into loan agreements
with OneWorld as follows:

¢ Note receivable in the amount of $196,000, interest at 6% per anum, in connection with the AHP
Loan Agreement (Note 12). The note is due upon the earlier of 90 days after the end of the 15
year compliance period under the AHP Loan Agreement or the date on which the property is sold
or refinanced. The amount receivable at February 28, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $284,924 and
$268,796, respectively, including accrued interest.

* Note receivable in the amount of $317,357, including interest at 6%, due and payable upon the
earlier of December 31, 2029, or the 90" day after the end of the compliance period under the low
income housing tax credit financing agreement as defined in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue
Code. The amount receivable at February 28, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $440,168 and
$415,254, respectively, including accrued interest.

o Note receivable in the amount of $350,000, including interest at 4.99%, due and payable in
semiannual installments of $18,294 commencing on May 15, 2014 and continuing each succeeding
September and May, with remainder due and payable on September 15, 2027. The amount
receivable at February 28, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $263,989 and $287,050, respectively,
including accrued interest.

It is the intent of management and the sponsor to operate the housing project under the terms and the
conditions specified above.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
OneWorld grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are area residents and are insured

under third-party payer agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payers at
February 28, 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

2019 2018
Medicaid 32% 36%
Medicare 3 6
Other third-party payors 36 26
Self pay 29 32

100% 100%

OneWorld maintains deposits in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits. OneWorld
routinely invests its funds in mutual funds, corporate bonds, U.S. treasury notes and federal agency
securities. Investments in these funds are not entirely insured or guaranteed. Management believes that the
credit risk related to these deposits and investments is minimal.

23



OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
February 28, 2019 and 2018

(12)

Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt obligations at February 28, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Mortgage note, payable in monthly installments of $20,351,
including interest at 4.5%, due January 10, 2028. Effective
January 1, 2023, variable interest rate of at least 4.25%
through maturity date, secured by interest in Livestock
Exchange Building, LLC.

Affordable Housing Program Loan, non-interest-bearing loan
due April 7, 2034, secured by interest in Livestock
Exchange Building, LLC.

City of Omaha Community Development Block Grant, non-
interest-bearing, payable in monthly instaliments of $2,444
commencing in 2024, due December 1, 2053, secured by
interest in Livestock Exchange Building, LLC.

Morigage note, payable in monthly installments of $7,861,
including interest at 4.3%, through October 10, 2027.

Affordable Housing Program loan with American National
Bank, non-interest bearing, except upon an event of default,
forgiven in December 2026, secured by interest in real
property for 15 years.

Less current portion
Less unamortized debt issuance costs

Long-term debt, net

2019 2018

3,090,964 -

300,000 -

880,000 -

681,324 --

196,000 196,000

5,148,288 196,000

(173,657) -
(34,618) -

$ 4,940,013 196,000

Deferred debt issuance issue costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of their respective
debt issue, which approximates the interest rate method. Amortization expense of $81 and $-0- in 2019
and 2018, respectively, is included with interest expense in the accompanying statements of operations and

changes in net assets.

The aggregate maturities of all long-term debt during each of the next five years are as foilows:

Year Amount
2020 $ 173,657
2021 181,427
2022 189,700
2023 198,271
2024 236,563
Thereatfter 4,168,670
5__5.148,288
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(14)

(15)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

2019 2018
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Medical $ 1,297,179 1,171,315
Dental 347,935 208,376
Pharmacy 99,887 24,527
Other programs 176,061 172,543
Capital campaign 577,296 144,677
Total subject to expenditure for specified purpose 2,498,358 1,721,438
Subject to the passage of time:
Medical 806,781 719,312
Dental - 180,000
Pharmacy 39,677 13,200
Other programs 51,532 14,314
Capital campaign 250,000 --
Total subject to the passage of time 1,147,990 926,826
Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 3,646,348 2,648,264

During the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, net assets were released from donor restriction by
incurring expenses and satisfying the restricted purposes as follows:

2019 2018
Capital campaign $ 317,381 45,323
Other 4,320,096 3,476,435
$ 4,637,477 3,521,758

Retirement Plan

OneWorld has a defined contribution pension plan. The plan is available to substantially all employees.
OneWorld contributes an amount equal to 100% of the employees’ annual contributions up to a maximum
limit of 3% of the employees’ annual salaries, plus an additional 50% of employee’s annual contributions
over 3% of employees’ annual salaries, up to a maximum limit of 6%. Employee and employer contributions
are fully vested immediately.

Total pension expense for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 was $723,833 and $692,519,
respectively.

Medical Malpractice Claims
The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Primary Health Care has deemed
OneWorld and its practicing providers covered under the Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA) for damage for

personal injury, including death, resulting from the performance of medical, surgical, dental and related
functions. FTCA coverage is comparable to an occurrence policy without a monetary cap.
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(17)

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require a healthcare provider
recognize the ultimate costs of malpractice claims or similar contingent liabilities, which include costs
associated with litigating or settling claims, when the incidents that give rise to the claims occur. OneWorld
does evaluate all incidents and claims along with prior claims experienced to determine if a liability is to be
recognized. For the years ending February 28, 2019 and 2018, management determined no liability should
be recognized for asserted or unasserted claims. Management is not aware of any such claim that would
have a material adverse impact on the accompanying financial statements.

Acquisition of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC

Effective January 1, 2019, OneWorld entered into a purchase agreement to become owner of 100%
membership interest in Livestock Exchange Building, LLC for a total purchase price of $1,510. The
acquisition will give OneWorld ownership of the Livestock Exchange Building which contains significant
portion of its clinical operations. The acquisition included the assets and assumption of liabilities of
Livestock Exchange Building LLC, including leasehold interests as lessor under certain master lease
agreements. The excess of the value of assets over the liabilities of $4,672,724 has been recognized as a
contribution in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. In connection with the
acquisition, OneWorld paid the City of Omaha Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control grant funds in the amount
of $129,600, which is included in payments on long term debt in the accompanying consolidated statements
of cash flows.

Commitments and Contingencies

Operating L eases

OneWorld leases various facilities and equipment under operating leases expiring at various dates through
September 2027. The main facility lease contains a three-year renewal option. Total rental expense for the

years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 for operating leases was $630,034 and $743,687, respectively.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under operating leases as of
February 28, 2019:

2020 $ 288,971

2021 252 572

2022 201,387

2023 156,439

2024 154,555

Thereafter 1,317,336
$ __2371,260

Litigation

OneWorld is involved in litigation and regulatory investigations arising in the course of business. Nearly all
of these claims are covered under policies of their current insurance carrier. After consultation with legal
counsel, management estimates these matters will be resolved without material adverse effect on
OneWorld's future financial position or results from operations.
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Change in Accounting Principle

OneWorld also adopted the provisions of FASB ASU 2016-14 Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities in 2018. ASU 2016-14 made several
changes to accounting and financial reporting for not-for-profit entities, including changes to the
presentation of net assets, qualitative and quantitative information of how an entity manages liquidity and
availability of financial assets to meet needs for expenditures, reporting of expenses by natural classification
and functional classification, as well as expanded footnote disclosures. As a result of adopting ASU 2016-
14, net assets previously described as unrestricted are now identified as net assets without donor
restrictions and net assets previously described as temporarily restricted are now identified as net assets
with donor restrictions.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Receivables -
Patient, net
Contributions
Grants and contracts
Other
Supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Investment in Livestock Exchange Building, LLC
Due from Livestock Commons, LLC

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
Deferred lease expense
Refundable advances
Long term debt, net of current portion
Total liabilities
Net assets and member's equity:
Net assets -
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets
Member's equity

Total net assets and member's equity

Total liabilities, net assets and member's equity

OneWorld
Community Livestock
Health Exchange Consolidated
Centers, Inc. Building, LLC Eliminations Total

$ 3,179,428 435,548 - 3,614,976
10,423,213 - - 10,423,213
1,274,160 -- - 1,274,160
1,147,990 -- - 1,147,990
1,866,504 - - 1,866,504
37,018 3,590 - 40,608
242,882 - - 242,882
410,920 30,546 - 441,466
18,582,115 469,684 - 19,051,799
3,044,480 642,838 - 3,687,318

4,899,491 <4 (4,899,491) =
989,081 - - 989,081
10,916,286 8,874,204 - 19,790,490
$ 38,431,453 9,986,726 (4,899,491) 43,518,688
$ - 173,657 - 173,657
908,448 5010 - 913,459
1,763,932 144,804 - 1,908,736
933,511 3,322 -~ 936,833
3,605,892 326,793 - 3,932,685
192,433 - - 192,433
- 16,429 - 16,429
196,000 4,744,013 — 4,940,013
3,994,325 5,087,235 - 9,081,560
30,790,780 - - 30,790,780
3,646,348 - - 3,646,348
34,437,128 = - 34,437,128

- 4,899,491 (4,899,491) -
34,437,128 4,899,491 (4,899,491) 34,437,128
$ 38,431,453 9,986,726 (4,899,491) 43,518,688
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CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
AND MEMBER'S EQUITY:

REVENUE:
Net patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue less provision for bad debts

Grants and contracts revenue

Contributions

Rental revenue, net

Other revenue

Net assets released from restrictions for operations

Total revenue

EXPENSES:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and other
Rent
Depreciation
Interest

Total expenses
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES)
Investment income, net

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET UNREALIZED GAINS (LOSSES) ON OTHER THAN
TRADING SECURITIES

NET ASSETS RELEASED FOR PURCHASE OF
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

CONTRIBUTION RECEIVED UPON ACQUISTION OF
LIVESTOCK EXCHANGE BUILDING, LLC.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION FOR PAYMENT OF LOAN

CHANGE IN VALUE OF INVESTMENT IN LIVESTOCK EXCHANGE
BUILDING, LLC.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:
Grants
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restriction for purchase of property
and equipment

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
NET ASSETS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY, beginning of year
NET ASSETS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY, end of year

OneWorld
Community Livestock
Health Exchange Consolidated
Centers, Inc. Building, LLC Eliminations Total
22,435,058 - - 22,435,058
(1.278,837) - - (1,278.837)
21,156,221 - - 21,156,221
12,691,951 - - 12,691,951
5,735,259 103,247 - 5,838,506
- 214,815 (57,496) 157,319
863,422 19,752 - 883,174
4,320,096 - - 4,320,096
44,766,949 337,814 (57.496) 45,047,267
21,394,396 13,942 - 21,408,338
4,510,910 2,981 - 4,513,891
2,574,086 49,929 - 2,624,015
14,136,590 41,009 - 14,177,599
687,530 - (57,496) 630,034
891,872 105,240 - 997,112
- 29,562 - 29,562
44,195,384 242,663 (57,496) 44,380,551
571,565 95,151 - 666,716
350,809 506 -- 351,315
922,374 95,657 - 1,018,031
(72,951) - 2 (72,951)
317,381 - - 317,381
4,672,724 - - 4,672,724
- 129,600 (129,600) -
85,657 - (95,657) -
5,935,185 225,257 (225,257) 5,935,185
1,755,886 - - 1,755,886
3,879,675 - - 3,879,675
(4,320,096) - - (4,320,096)
(317,381) i = (317,381)
998,084 - - 998,084
6,933,269 225,257 (225,257) 6,933,269
27,503,859 4,674,234 (4,674,234) 27,503,859
34,437,128 4,899 491 (4,899,491) 34,437,128
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ederal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Health Resources & Services Administration

Health Center Program Cluster
Consolidated Health Centers

ACA - Grants for New and Expanded Services Under the Healih Center Program
Total Health Center Program Cluster
Passed through Nebraska Department of Heaith and Human Services
Family Planning Services

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant
Passed through Nebraska Depariment of Health and Human Services

Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the Nation

Passed through Nebraska Department of Heallh and Human Services
Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the Nation (Wisewoman)

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
State Public Health Actions to Prevent and Control Diabetes, Heart Disease, Obesity,
and Associated Risk Factors and Promote School Health financed in part by Prevention
and Public Health Funding (PPHF)

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Refugee and Entrant Assistance

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Nebraska Immunization and Vaccines for Children Program

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Douglas County Health Department

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal

CFDA

Number

93.224

93.527

93.217

93.074

93.889

93.758

93.094

93.436

93.757

93.566

93.994

93.268

10.557

Pass-Through Entity
Identifying Number

HBOCS00737

HB80CS00737

1FPHPAQ76214

17NU90TP921891

09000533TP16H

0916B1NEPRVS
0917B1NEPRVS

D9UDP004863A
09004863DP14

18NU58DP006645

004819RF16DDTPPHF17

0G1701NERCMA

16B04MC29351

NH23IP000756

173NE706W1003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

$

$

Total Federal
Expenditures

2,184,056

4,733,394

6,917,450

310,988

32,457

57,492

17,787

7,380

1,181

4,726

954

56,119

20,329

7,426,863

645,198

8,072,061
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Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal award activity of
OneWorld under the programs of the federal government for the year ended February 28, 2019. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of OneWorld, it is not intended
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of OneWorld.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate

OneWorld has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.
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SEIM JOHNSON

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
Omaha, Nebraska:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
and Affiliates (OneWorld), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of February 28, 2019, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated July 2, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered OneWorld's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of OneWorld's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of OneWorld's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether OneWorld's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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OneWorld’s Response to Findings

The OneWorld's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. OneWorld's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

SZIM Tonmsow, LLP

Omaha, Nebraska,
July 2, 2019.
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SEIM JOHNSON

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors of
OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
Omaha, Nebraska:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates’ (OneWorld) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of OneWorld's major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2019. OneWorld's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of OneWorld's major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
OneWorld's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of OneWorld's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, OneWorld complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred fo
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
February 28, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of OneWorld is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered OneWorld's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
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appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of OneWorld's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contro! over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

§£IM ja_f/AJso;v), LZ,)D

Omaha, Nebraska,
July 2, 2019.
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OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

I SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance
with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Health Center Program Cluster
93.224 Consolidated Health Centers

93.527 Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and Expanded
Services Under the Health Center Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding No. 2019-001

Criteria:

Condition:

Effect:

Cause:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials:

Effective internal control would result in accurate and reliable financial
reporting.

The acquisition of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC was not accurately
reported in the financial statements. Several adjustments were made to the
accounts of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC prior to recognition to properly
reflect the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition.

This resulted in audit adjustments to properly reflect the transaction associated
with the recognition of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, resulting
in a contribution to be recognized upon acquisition.

Management was aware of the transaction but did not go through a proper
evaluation to determine the proper recognition of the transaction in the financial
statements.

We recommend management continue to monitor the activities of Livestock
Exchange Building, LLC that are being accounted for by an outside
management company to ensure the financial position and activities are
properly reflected in the consolidated financial statements of OneWorld.

Management is aware that the transaction to acquire the Livestock Exchange
Building LLC was not recognized appropriately in the financial statements upon
completion of the acquisition.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.
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OneWorld

S Community Health Centers, Inc.

Corrective Action Plan
For the Year Ended February 28, 2019

Culturally Respectful, Quality Health Care | www.OneWorldOmaha.org

OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc. and Affiliates

4920 South 30th Street, Suite 103, Omaha, NE 68107
Administration: (402) 502-8845
Appointments: (402) 734-4110
Fax: (402) 991-5642

Finding No. 2019-001

Criteria:

Condition:

Planned Corrective
Action:

Planned Completion
Date:

Person Responsible:

Effective
reporting.

internal control would result in accurate and reliable financial

The acquisition of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC was not accurately
reported in the financial statements. Several adjustments were made to the
accounts of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC prior to recognition to properly
reflect the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition.

Management will undergo a process to more thoroughly review the accounts
and transactions of Livestock Exchange Building, LLC to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of amounts reported to ensure they are properly reported in
the consolidated financial statements of OneWorld.

Ongoing

Tom MclLaughlin, CFO

BOARD

Michael Chase

Robert {(Bo) Dunlay, MD
Correen Harrell

Anna Hernandez-Valencla
Cecllia Hiebner

Alan Jarecki

Kristina Jordan

Christina Kahler

Senator Jehn McCollister
Dan McMahon

Blanca Mejia

Suzi Sterba ADVISORS Kellie Harry
Jaime Suarez-Delgado Ellie Batt Mike & Susan Lebens
Milton Trabal Ken Bird PhD Carol Wang

Maria Wollen
Andrea Skolkin,
Chief Executive Officer

Stephen & Anne Bruckner
Dr. Mike & Kathy Gross
Jamie Gutierrez Mora

Drew & MereditWeitz
Adam & Sarah Yale
Lyn Wallin Ziegenbein
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OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.
Summary of Bidder’s Corporate Experience

Minority Health Initiative (MHI)

United Way of the Midlands

a) Time Period

July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2015
July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017
July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2019
plus a 6-month extension to December 31, 2019

July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017
July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018
July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2019
July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020

b) Scheduled and

July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2015

July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017

Actual July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017 July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018
Complete July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2019 July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2019
Dates July 1, 2019 — Present July 1, 2019 - Present
c) Bidder’s e Recruit, train and support Hispanic community e Increase access to health care by providing chronic
Responsibilities | health workers known as promotoras to screen disease outreach, education, screenings and case

minority persons in Congressional District 1 in
Sarpy County for risk for obesity, cardiovascular
disease or diabetes (including prediabetes) and
connect them with the services.

e Deliver health education and conduct screenings for
300 minorities from Sarpy County per year.

¢ Refer minorities at risk for obesity, cardiovascular
health and diabetes (including prediabetes) to a
medical home and follow-up with minorities

e Provide consistent case management for minorities
at risk for obesity, cardiovascular health and
diabetes (including prediabetes).

e Help minorities to overcome personal barriers that
interfere with improved health outcomes by sharing
information including dates, locations and costs of
community classes and other resources for
achieving a healthy lifestyle.

management to 800 Hispanic residents of Douglas
County per year.

e Recruit and train volunteer community health
workers known as promotoras who educate, screen
and follow-up with relatives, friends and neighbors
to improve health and prevent disease.

e Attend outreach events in Douglas County and meet
with patients at OneWorld’s South Omaha location.

e Connect patients to programs such as Medicaid,
Medicare, Health Insurance Marketplace and
Women, Infants & Children (WIC) supplemental
nutrition and health care homes such as OneWorld.




d) References

Dianne Harrop

Office of Health Disparities and Health Equity
Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
Telephone: 402-595-3537

Fax: 402-595-1430

Email: Dianne.Harrop@nebraska.gov

Heather Tomczak

United Way of the Midlands
Telephone: 402-522-7956

Fax:

E-mail: HTomczak@UWMidlands.org

e) Prime
Contractor or
Subcontractor

Prime Contractor -

July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2015 for $303,655

July 1, 2015 — June 30, 2017 for $391,812.24

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2019 for $1,1377,100

July 1, 2019 — December 31, 2019 for $344,275.26

Prime Contractor -

July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 for $438,300
July 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018 for $438,300
July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2019 for $372,400
July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020 for $372,400







Vivian R. Garcia Mendez

Email: vgarcia@oneworldomaha.org
Cell: (402) 943-8554

Education

University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE Graduation: May 2015
Bachelor of Arts & Sciences in Public Health with a minor in Spanish

WP-Beemer Jr. Sr. High School, West Point, NE Graduation: May 2009
High School Diploma

Work Experience

e Minority Health Outreach Manager, OneWorld Community Health Centers
July 2017-Present

o The program manager is responsible for overseeing and managing the efforts of
outreach teams and/or programs reach out to populations that do not have access
to primary care. Provide health education or case management to improve their
health. The outreach manager recruits, trains, supervises and evaluates the Minority
Health Program Coordinator(s), the Promotoras, and the Health Window
Coordinator(s) at the Mexican Consulate. Manage the designated community health
outreach programs; develop policies, procedures and work plans; report on the
effectiveness and outcomes of the programs; and serve as the liaison to health
center leadership, stakeholders, and collaborators.

e Minority Health Program Coordinator, One World Community Health Centers
July 2015- June 2017
o The Program Coordinator is responsible for conducting program awareness and
participant recruitment efforts as well as educational activities of the outreach
teams and/or programs to bring enhanced health outcomes to the communities
served. Provide support to the program manager and promotoras or community
outreach workers, stakeholders and collaborators.

e Bilingual Interviewer, Professional Research Consultants Inc.
Feb. 2012- July 2015
o Completed surveys over the phone to improve the quality of health care, in hospitals

and communities. Used a specific program on the computer in order to properly
save the responses of the clients.



e Certified Nursing Assistant, Maximum Health Care.
Feb. 2010 — Feb. 2012
o Provide basic patient care. Assist resident with personal care needs, take vital signs.

e Certified Nursing Assistant and Med Assistant, West Point Living Center
Oct. 2007 - Feb 2010
o Provide basic patient care. Assist resident with personal care needs, take vital signs.
Monitor medications and keep Mar and counts of meds in the facility.

Internship

¢ Intern at One World Community Health Center, Omaha NE
July 2014 - Dec. 2014
o Assisted Behavioral Health Coordinator in dispatching calls and documentation.
o Assisted in the Outreach program. Prepared and presented an educational
presentation in the Promotoras De Salud Program.
o Engaged in community meetings/network.

Certification/Training
e Promotora De Salud ( Community Health Worker), 2014
e CPR, 2010
e Med Aid, 2008
o C.N.A, 2007



References

Richard Stacy

Professor of Health and Kinesiology
University of Nebraska at Omaha
H&K Building

6001 Dodge Street

Omaha, NE 68182

Phone: 402-554-3235

Email: stacy@unomaha.edu

Dianne Harrop

Health Program Manager

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
301 Centennial Mall South

Lincoln, NE 68509

Phone: 402-595-3537

Email: Dianne.Harrop@nebraska.gov

Mariel Harding

Director of Community Impact
United Way of the Midlands

2201 Farnam Street, Suite 200
Omaha, NE 68102

Phone: 402-522-7958

Email: mharding@uwmidlands.org



Maria Vargas

2015 Madison Circle Phone: 402-502-7794
Omaha, NE 68107 mavargas@oneworldomaha.org

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS
= Bilingual in English and Spanish with cultural awareness and appreciation of diversity
» Recipient of $2,000 UNO FUSE Research Grant
= Highly motivated to achieve set goals and challenge-driven with a passion for solving problems
= Effective and persuasive public health advocate within diverse segments of the community
= Significant experience with Bilingual presentations in the general public and classroom environment

EDUCATION

University of Nebraska at Omaha,

December 2015

Major: Bachelor of Science in Public Health Minor: Spanish
Certificate: Gerontology

Chancellor's & Dean's List - GPA 3.74/4.0
HPER Student Honors Convocation Award

Metropolitan Community College

May 2010
Associate in Science/Liberal Arts - GPA 3.36/4.0 English as a Second Language

Nebraska Methodist College
November 2010
Phlebotomy Certification & CPR Certification

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
Community Health Promoter at OneWorld Community Health Center, October 2015 - Present
= Responsible for performing basic health screenings-blood pressure, blood glucose & BMI
Creating documents and performing case managements for people at risk
Building new partnerships between community organizations and Minority Health Initiative (MHI)
Delivering Pre-diabetes and High Blood Pressure education
Helping with the organization of community events at OneWorld
MHI data entry

Health Window at the Mexican Consulate

= Performing basic health screenings-blood pressure, blood glucose, BM! and vision

= Delivering health prevention education

= Inviting different organizations to make presentations at the Mexican Consulate

= Helping with the organization of community events sponsored by the Mexican Consulate

= Data entry

Internship with UNMC College of Public Health

Bilingual Public Health Coordinator at Four Corners Health Department in York, NE, May 2012 - August 2012
= Responsible for programming, conducting, and transfating at Latino Community Health event

Developed focus groups within the Latino community related to public health awareness

Modified public health focus groups to assertion the community health concerns and issues

Created public health presentations in Spanish for the Latino community

Translated public health written material from English to Spanish

Plenty experience working for minority members in the community



UNO - FUSE Research Grant Program, May 2013 - August 2013

Fuse Recipient {Fund for Undergraduate Scholarly Experience
= Awarded $2,000 grant for research on "The Impact of the Acculturation Process in Latina's Nutrition"
= Developed the research too! to gather information from the Latino community subjects
= Created a poster presentation to show case facts/results of the research

UNMC College of Public Health, July 2013 - August 2013

Public Health Training Omaha, NE
= Overviewed of public health practice in rural areas of NE
= Recruited public health knowledge from the visited Community Health Centers
« Presented researched information to the UNMC administration authorities

INTERCULTURAL SENIOR CENTER, July 2014 - October 2015
Public Health Education

= Teach public health and literacy classes for Latino and Refugees in English and Spanish about
different topics such as breast cancer, personal hygiene, basic literacy, basic computer use

= Facilitate promotion of the Intercultural Senior Center
= Develop written reports documentation presentations and activities

Translator

» Collaborate with the Visiting Nurse Assistance (VNA) Nutritionists team translating from English to Spanish
» Motivate members of the Latino community to use the nutrition services available for them

Gerontology Practicum

= Organized and promoted drive to collect hygiene products for the Intercultural Senior Center
= Surpassed the goal set for the prior collections of donated products

Wal-Mart, September 2009 - August 2015
Cashier
= Greet customers as they arrive and establish a friendly shopping experience
» Operate cash register and adding machine in order to manage cash for sold items
= Calculate discounts as appropriate and tag items for price and expiry date
= Stock items when required

Omaha World Herald, August 2002 - July 2008
Carrier

= Delivered 500 newspapers six days a week and 800 on Sundays
* Improved route lists to do the delivery in shorter time
= Performed delivery on time for six years

LEADERSHIP ACTIVITIES & VOLUNTEER SERVICE

UNO Emerging Leaders

UNO IC Scholar Program

"Who is who in America" - nominated member
Latino Community Center

UNO Food Pantry

Stephen Center

UNO 7 Days of Service Habitat for Humanity
UNMC Community Health Fare



References

Richard Stacy

Professor of Health and Kinesiology
University of Nebraska at Omaha
Hé&K Building

6001 Dodge Street

Omaha, NE 68182

Phone: 402-554-3235

Email: stacy@unomaha.edu

Dianne Harrop

Health Program Manager

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
301 Centennial Mall South

Lincoln, NE 68509

Phone: 402-595-3537

Email: Dianne . Harrop@nebraska.gov

Mariel Harding

Director of Community Impact
United Way of the Midlands

2201 Farnam Street, Suite 200
Omaha, NE 68102

Phone: 402-522-7958

Email: mharding@uwmidlands.org



Laura Hernandez
2309 F 23st
Omaha, NE 68107
(402)714-2749
lahernandez@oneworldomaha.org

EDUCATION
e 1stgrade- 9t grade.

WORK EXPERIENCE

e Health Promoter Lead, One World Community Health Centers. Jan. 2015-to Present
4920 South 30* Street Omaha, NE 68107- to

e Health Promoter, One World Community Health Centers. May 2014- Dec.2015
4920 South 30t Street Omaha, NE 68107

e Child Care Provider, Mujeres Activas. April-2012- May 2014
Contact, Gabriela Ortiz, 402-215-4182

¢ Lactation Peer Counselor, One World Community Health Centers. May 2012- Dec.2014
4920 South 30t Street Omaha, NE 68107

e Seamstress, Designers Workroom, INC. April 2011-April 2012
2317 F Street, Omaha, NE 68107

e Production worker, Farmland Packing Company. July 2010- March 2011
800 Industrial Dr, Denison, IA 51442

Volunteer Experience
e Spring Lake Elementary
o Assisted with the monthly community meetings.
o Assisted in the parent resource center.
e Boys Town
o Assisted with the parent meetings on how to practice healthy skills to raise children.
e South High School
O Assisted with the yearly multicultural events.

SKILLS
e Can speak and write Spanish fluently.
e Health Promoter
o Able to educate the community about BP, Glucose, BMI, Nutrition, and Sexual Health



Certification/Training

Mental Health First AID Training, 2019

CPR, 2018

Nebraska DHHS Community Health Worker Training Spring , 2015
Community Health Advocates Program, 2015

La Crianza Practica De Los Hijos, 2014

Minority Health Initiatives, 2014



CME Certificate for non-physician

S APHA

AMERICAN PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION
For science. For action. For health

American Public Health Association

Learning and Professional Development Programs Unit

States that

Laura Hernandez

Attended one or more session(s) at the:

Clinical Detection and Management of High Blood Pressure
which were approved for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit(s)™

Omaha, NE
September 17, 2015
Hours attendeded: 5

-

2}

eorges C. Benjary
Executive Dirc t@

S
n, MD, FACP

Accreditation Statement

This activity has been planned and implemented in accordance with the Essential Areas and Policies of the Accreditation Council for
Continuing Medical Education through the joint providership of the American Public Health Association (APHA) and MCD Public
Health. The APHA is accredited by the ACCME to provide continuing medical education for physicians.

Designation Statement

APHA designates this live activity for a maximum of S AMA PRA Category I Credit(s/™. Each physician should claim only those hours of
credit that he/she actually spent in the activity



References

Richard Stacy

Professor of Health and Kinesiology
University of Nebraska at Omaha
Hé&K Building

6001 Dodge Street

Omaha, NE 68182

Phone: 402-554-3235

Email: stacy@unomaha.edu

Dianne Harrop

Health Program Manager

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
301 Centennial Mall South

Lincoln, NE 68509

Phone: 402-595-3537

Email: Dianne.Harrop@nebraska.gov

Mariel Harding

Director of Community Impact
United Way of the Midlands

2201 Farnam Street, Suite 200
Omaha, NE 68102

Phone: 402-522-7958

Email: mharding@uwmidlands.org



Wendy Rodriguez Canada
8702 Quest St, Omaha, NE 68122
(402) 612-4763
rodriguezwm24(@gmail.com

Summary of Qualifications

e  Skilled at interacting with clients from socioeconomic backgrounds
*  Excellent at establishing relationships with clients
e  Bilingual in English and Spanish

Education

Bachelor of Arts in Biology, Honors Graduate
University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, NE
December 2016

Nursing Assistant Certificate
Methodist College, Omaha, NE
March 2017

Healtheare experience

OneWorld Community Health Centers, Inc.

Diabetes Case Manger

February 2018 - Present

e Independently manages diabetic patient caseload with priority given to patients with Alc > 9%,

e  Effectively communicates with patients, diabetes educators, clinical pharmacists and medical providers

s Works directly with clinical staff and outside facilities to obtain Alc results.

e Analyzes data and implements strategies to ensure that OneWorld is meeting diabetes goals for Healthy People 2020

Skyline Retirement Community, Omaha, NE

Nursing Assistant

May 2017 - February 2018

e  Assisted Residents with Activities of daily living

*  Checked residents for any skin breakdown, and change in mood and in condition and report to nurse
e Performed lift and transport resident according to care plan

Skyline Retirement Community, Omaha, NE

Dietary Aide

March 2015 - May 2017

e Served food and beverage to residents making sure residents have the appropriate meal according to their diet
e  Clean and organize tables to maintain a clean environment for residents

e Provided service in dining room and dish room by stocking up making sure everything is set for the next day

Work experience

Wheatfield’s, Omaha, NE

Cashier

March 2013 - January 2015

Answered phones to assist customers with orders while providing friendly service
Provided customers with detailed information on different products

Balanced all transactions at end of the day and split tips

Holiday Inn Express, Omaha, NE

Housekeeper

August 2011- March 2012

e Performed a variety of cleaning activities such as sweeping, mopping, and dusting

e  Ensured all rooms are cared for and inspected according to standards

e  Assisted customers’ requests or complaints, referring them to managers as necessary
e  Cleaned and maintained lobby and common areas

Provided customer service by checking out customers in a timely manner while attending duties such as assisting deli work



Mangia Italiana, Omaha, NE

Cashier

April 2011 — August 2011

e Greeted customers and took orders and provided friendly service

e  Served food and beverages to customers making sure they receive food on time
e  Prepared food such salads

Volunteer Experience
Volunteer at Nebraska Medicine Child Life and Diabetes Center
April 2017 - Present
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. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Bidders should complete Sections Il through VI as part of their proposal. Bidder is expected to read the Terms and
Conditions and should initial either accept, reject, or reject and provide alternative language for each clause. The bidder
should also provide an explanation of why the bidder rejected the clause or rejected the clause and provided alternate
language. By signing the solicitation, bidder is agreeing to be legally bound by all the accepted terms and conditions, and
any proposed alternative terms and conditions submitted with the proposal. The State reserves the right to negotiate
rejected or proposed alternative language. If the State and awarded contractor fail to agree on the final Terms and
Conditions, the State reserves the right to reject the proposal. The State of Nebraska is soliciting proposals in response to
this solicitation. The State of Nebraska reserves the right to reject proposals that attempt to substitute the bidder's
commercial contracts and/or documents for this solicitation.

The bidders should submit with their proposal any license, user agreement, service level agreement, or similar documents
that the bidder wants incorporated in the Contract. The State will not consider incorporation of any document not submitted
with the bidder’s proposal as the document will not have been included in the evaluation process. These documents shall be
subject to negotiation and will be incorporated as addendums if agreed to by the Parties.

If a conflict or ambiguity arises after the Addendum to Contract Award have been negotiated and agreed to, the Addendum
to Contract Award shall be interpreted as follows:

1. If only one Party has a particular clause then that clause shall control,
2. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses do not conflict, the clauses shall be read together;
3. If both Parties have a similar clause, but the clauses conflict, the State’s clause shall control.

A. GENERAL

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject | Alternative within
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

The contract resulting from this solicitation shall incorporate the following documents:

Request for Proposal and Addenda;

Amendments to the solicitation;

Questions and Answers;

Bidder's proposal (Solicitation and properly submitted documents);

The executed Contract and Addendum One to Contract, if applicable; and,
Amendments/Addendums to the Contract.

oahb

These documents constitute the entirety of the contract.

Unless otherwise specifically stated in a future contract amendment, in case of any conflict between the
incorporated documents, the documents shall govern in the following order of preference with number one (1)
receiving preference over all other documents and with each lower numbered document having preference over
any higher numbered document: 1) Amendment to the executed Contract with the most recent dated amendment
having the highest priority, 2) executed Contract and any attached Addenda, 3) Amendments to solicitation and any
Questions and Answers, 4) the original solicitation document and any Addenda, and 5) the Contractor's submitted
Proposal.

Any ambiguity or conflict in the contract discovered after its execution, not otherwise addressed herein, shall be
resolved in accordance with the rules of contract interpretation as established in the State of Nebraska.

Page 9
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B. NOTIFICATION

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject | Alternative within .
(nitial) | (nitial) |  Solicitation | NOTES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

4%

Contractor and State shall identify the contract manager who shall serve as the point of contact for the executed
contract.

Communications regarding the executed contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given if
delivered personally or mailed, by U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the parties at their
respective addresses set forth below, or at such other addresses as may be specified in writing by either of the
parties. All notices, requests, or communications shall be deemed effective upon personal delivery or five (5)
calendar days following deposit in the mail.

Either party may change its address for notification purposes by giving notice of the change, and setting forth the
new address and an effective date.

NOTICE (POC)

The State reserves the right to appoint a Buyer's Representative to manage [or assist the Buyer in managing] the
contract on behalf of the State. The Buyer's Representative will be appointed in writing, and the appointment
document will specify the extent of the Buyer's Representative authority and responsibilities. If a Buyer's
Representative is appointed, the Contractor will be provided a copy of the appointment document, and is expected
to cooperate accordingly with the Buyer's Representative. The Buyer's Representative has no authority to bind the
State to a contract, amendment, addendum, or other change or addition to the contract.

GOVERNING LAW (Statutory)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this contract, or any amendment or addendum(s) entered into
contemporaneously or at a later time, the parties understand and agree that, (1) the State of Nebraska is a
sovereign state and its authority to contract is therefore subject to limitation by the State’s Constitution, statutes,
common law, and regulation; (2) this contract will be interpreted and enforced under the laws of the State of
Nebraska; (3) any action to enforce the provisions of this agreement must be brought in the State of Nebraska per
state law; (4) the person signing this contract on behalf of the State of Nebraska does not have the authority to
waive the State's sovereign immunity, statutes, common law, or regulations; (5) the indemnity, limitation of liability,
remedy, and other similar provisions of the final contract, if any, are entered into subject to the State's Constitution,
statutes, common law, regulations, and sovereign immunity; and, (6) all terms and conditions of the final contract,
including but not limited to the clauses concerning third party use, licenses, warranties, limitations of liability,
governing law and venue, usage verification, indemnity, liability, remedy or other similar provisions of the final
contract are entered into specifically subject to the State's Constitution, statutes, common law, regulations, and
sovereign immunity.

The Parties must comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules, orders, and regulations.

BEGINNING OF WORK
The contractor shall not commence any billable work until a valid contract has been fully executed by the State and
the successful Contractor. The Contractor will be notified in writing when work may begin.

AMENDMENT
This Contract may be amended in writing, within scope, upon the agreement of both parties.

Page 10
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G.

CHANGE ORDERS OR SUBSTITUTIONS

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ;
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation SEES CONNERS:

Response (Initial)

%

The State and the Contractor, upon the written agreement, may make changes to the contract within the general
scope of the solicitation. Changes may involve specifications, the quantity of work, or such other items as the
State may find necessary or desirable. Corrections of any deliverable, service, or work required pursuant to the
contract shall not be deemed a change. The Contractor may not claim forfeiture of the contract by reasons of such
changes.

The Contractor shall prepare a written description of the work required due to the change and an itemized cost
sheet for the change. Changes in work and the amount of compensation to be paid to the Contractor shall be
determined in accordance with applicable unit prices if any, a pro-rated value, or through negotiations. The State
shall not incur a price increase for changes that should have been included in the Contractor's proposal, were
foreseeable, or result from difficulties with or failure of the Contractor's proposal or performance.

No change shall be implemented by the Contractor until approved by the State, and the Contract is amended to
reflect the change and associated costs, if any. If there is a dispute regarding the cost, but both parties agree that
immediate implementation is necessary, the change may be implemented, and cost negotiations may continue with
both Parties retaining all remedies under the contract and law.

In the event any product is discontinued or replaced upon mutual consent during the contract period or prior to
delivery, the State reserves the right to amend the contract or purchase order to include the alternate product at the
same price.

***Contractor will not substitute any item that has been awarded without prior written approval of SPB***

H. VENDOR PERFORMANCE REPORT(S)

Reject & Provide
Accept Reject Alternative within .
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation SEAlES EONMUERLS

Response (Initial)

¥

The State may document any instance(s) of products or services delivered or performed which exceed or fail to
meet the terms of the purchase order, contract, and/or solicitation specifications. The State Purchasing Bureau may

contact the Vendor regarding any such report. Vendor performance report(s) will become a part of the permanent
record of the Vendor.

NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CONTRACTOR BREACH

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
{Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

AL

If Contractor breaches the contract or anticipates breaching the contract, the Contractor shall immediately give
written notice to the State. The notice shall explain the breach or potential breach, a proposed cure, and may
include a request for a waiver of the breach if so desired. The State may, in its discretion, temporarily or
permanently waive the breach. By granting a waiver, the State does not forfeit any rights or remedies to which the
State is entitled by law or equity, or pursuant to the provisions of the contract. Failure to give immediate notice,
however, may be grounds for denial of any request for a waiver of a breach.
Page 11
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J. BREACH
Reject & Provide

Accept | Reject Alternative within ]

(Initial) | (nitial) Solicitation ROIESCOMNER S

Response {Initial)

i

Either Party may terminate the contract, in whole or in par, if the other Party breaches its duty to perform its
obligations under the contract in a timely and proper manner. Termination requires written notice of default and a
thirty (30) calendar day (or longer at the non-breaching Party’s discretion considering the gravity and nature of the
default) cure period. Said notice shall be delivered by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, or in person with
proof of delivery. Allowing time to cure a failure or breach of contract does not waive the right to immediately
terminate the contract for the same or different contract breach which may occur at a different time. In case of
default of the Contractor, the State may contract the service from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible
for any excess cost occasioned thereby. OR In case of breach by the Contractor, the State may, without
unreasonable delay, make a good faith effort to make a reasonable purchase or contract to purchased goods in
substitution of those due from the contractor. The State may recover from the Contractor as damages the
difference between the costs of covering the breach. Notwithstanding any clause to the contrary, the State may
also recover the contract price together with any incidental or consequential damages defined in UCC Section 2-
715, but less expenses saved in consequence of Contractor's breach.

The State’s failure to make payment shall not be a breach, and the Contractor shall retain all available statutory
remedies and protections.

K. NON-WAIVER OF BREACH

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within }
(Initial) | (nitial) Solicitation NOTES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

V’i_
NP

The acceptance of late performance with or without objection or reservation by a Party shall not waive any rights of
the Party nor constitute a waiver of the requirement of timely performance of any obligations remaining to be
performed.

L. SEVERABILITY

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ]
(Initial) | (Initial) Sollcitation NOTES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

NG
/ .\?(\\

If any term or condition of the contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with
any law, the validity of the remaining terms and conditions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of
the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain the provision held to be invalid or
illegal.
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M. INDEMNIFICATION

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Reject & Provide
NOTES/COMMENTS:
Response (Initial)

GENERAL

The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State and its employees, volunteers,
agents, and its elected and appointed officials (“the indemnified parties”) from and against any and all third
party claims, liens, demands, damages, liability, actions, causes of action, losses, judgments, costs, and
expenses of every nature, including investigation costs and expenses, settlement costs, and attorney fees
and expenses (“the claims"), sustained or asserted against the State for personal injury, death, or property
loss or damage, arising out of, resulting from, or attributable to the willful misconduct, negligence, error, or
omission of the Contractor, its employees, Subcontractors, consultants, representatives, and agents,
resulting from this contract, except to the extent such Contractor liability is attenuated by any action of the
State which directly and proximately contributed to the claims.

PERSONNEL

The Contractor shall, at its expense, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified parties from and against
any claim with respect to withholding taxes, worker's compensation, employee benefits, or any other claim,
demand, liability, damage, or loss of any nature relating to any of the personnel, including subcontractor’s
and their employees, provided by the Contractor.

SELF-INSURANCE

The State of Nebraska is self-insured for any loss and purchases excess insurance coverage pursuant to
Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-8,239.01 (Reissue 2008). If there is a presumed loss under the provisions of this
agreement, Contractor may file a claim with the Office of Risk Management pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§
81-8,829 — 81-8,306 for review by the State Claims Board. The State retains all rights and immunities
under the State Miscellaneous (Section 81-8,294), Tort (Section 81-8,209), and Contract Claim Acts
(Section 81-8,302), as outlined in Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-8,209 et seq. and under any other provisions of law
and accepts liability under this agreement to the extent provided by law.

ALL REMEDIES AT LAW

Nothing in this agreement shall be construed as an indemnification by one Party of the other for liabilities
of a Party or third parties for property loss or damage or death or personal injury arising out of and during
the performance of this contract. Any liabilities or claims for property loss or damages or for death or
personal injury by a Party or its agents, employees, contractors or assigns or by third persons, shall be
determined according to applicable law.

The Parties acknowledge that Attorney General for the State of Nebraska is required by statute to
represent the legal interests of the State, and that any provision of this indemnity clause is subject to the
statutory authority of the Attorney General.

N. ATTORNEY'S FEES

Accept
(Initial)

Reject Alternative within
(Initlal) Solicitation

Reject & Provide
NOTES/COMMENTS:
Response (Initial)

e nat Lt o T atphels £eeb
Goo, comment’ Q]l

In the event of any litigation, appeal, or other legal action to enforce any provision of the contract, the Parties agree
to pay all expenses of such action, as permitted by law and if ordered by the coun, including attorney's fees and
costs, if the other Party prevails.
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O.

RETAINAGE

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

N o=

The State shall withhold twenty percent (20%) of payment due as retainage using the methodology listed in
Attachment B. The entire retainage amount will be payable upon successful completion of the project. Evaluation
of project success is determined by the State through the use of the retainage methodology listed in Attachment B.

Upon completion of the project, the Contractor will invoice the State for any outstanding work and for the retainage.
Otherwise, the project will be deemed accepted and the State will release the final payment and retainage in
accordance with the contract payment terms.

P. ASSIGNMENT, SALE, OR MERGER
Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within |
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation R
Response (Initial)
1\
Either Party may assign the contract upon mutual written agreement of the other Party. Such agreement shall not
be unreasonably withheld.
The Contractor retains the right to enter into a sale, merger, acquisition, internal reorganization, or similar
transaction involving Contractor's business. Contractor agrees to cooperate with the State in executing
amendments to the contract to allow for the transaction. If a third party or entity is involved in the transaction, the
Contractor will remain responsible for performance of the contract until such time as the person or entity involved in
the transaction agrees in writing to be contractually bound by this contract and perform all obligations of the
contract. :
Q. CONTRACTING WITH OTHER NEBRASKA POLITICAL SUB-DIVISIONS OF THE STATE OR ANOTHER
STATE
Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within )
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation HOIESCCVMERTS:

Response (Initial)

OW

The Contractor may, but shall not be required to, allow agencies, as defined in Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-145, to use this
contract. The terms and conditions, including price, of the contract may not be amended. The State shall not be
contractually obligated or liable for any contract entered into pursuant to this clause. A listing of Nebraska political
subdivisions may be found at the website of the Nebraska Auditor of Public Accounts.

The Contractor may, but shall not be required to, allow other states, agencies or divisions of other states, or political
subdivisions of other states to use this contract. The terms and conditions, including price, of this contract shall
apply to any such contract, but may be amended upon mutual consent of the Parties. The State of Nebraska shall
not be contractually or otherwise obligated or liable under any contract entered into pursuant to this clause. The
State shall be notified if a contract is executed based upon this contract.
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R.

FORCE MAJEURE

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

= ‘}\)‘) S

Neither Party shall be liable for any costs or damages, or for default resulting from its inability to perform any of its
obligations under the contract due to a natural or manmade event outside the control and not the fault of the
affected Party (“Force Majeure Event"). The Party so affected shall immediately make a written request for relief to
the other Party, and shall have the burden of proof to justify the request. The other Party may grant the relief
requested; relief may not be unreasonably withheld. Labor disputes with the impacted Party’s own employees will
not be considered a Force Majeure Event.

S. CONFIDENTIALITY

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within s
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation FORES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

1@

All materials and information provided by the Parties or acquired by a Party on behalf of the other Party shall be
regarded as confidential information. All materials and information provided or acquired shall be handled in
accordance with federal and state law, and ethical standards. Should said confidentiality be breached by a Party,
the Party shall notify the other Party immediately of said breach and take immediate corrective action.

It is incumbent upon the Parties to inform their officers and employees of the penalties for improper disclosure
imposed by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a. Specifically, 5 U.S.C. 552a (i)(1), which is made applicable by
5 U.S.C. 652a (m)(1), provides that any officer or employee, who by virtue of his/her employment or official position
has possession of or access to agency records which contain individually identifiable information, the disclosure of
which is prohibited by the Privacy Act or regulations established thereunder, and who knowing that disclosure of the
specific material is prohibited, willfully discloses the material in any manner to any person or agency not entitied to
receive it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and fined not more than $5,000.

OFFICE OF PUBLIC COUNSEL (Statutory)

If it provides, under the terms of this contract and on behaif of the State of Nebraska, health and human services to
individuals; service delivery; service coordination; or case management, Contractor shall submit to the jurisdiction of
the Office of Public Counsel, pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-8,240 et seq. This section shall survive the
termination of this contract.

LONG-TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN (Statutory)

Contractor must comply with the Long-Term Care Ombudsman Act, per Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 81-2237 et seq. This
section shall survive the termination of this contract.
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V.

EARLY TERMINATION

Reject & Provide

Accept | Reject Alternative within X
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation RO TS O NS
Response (Initial)
|r j J
\

The contract may be terminated as follows:

1.

2.

The State and the Contractor, by mutual written agreement, may terminate the contract at any time.

The State, in its sole discretion, may terminate the contract for any reason upon thirty (30) calendar day's
written notice to the Contractor. Such termination shall not relieve the Contractor of warranty or other
service obligations incurred under the terms of the contract. In the event of termination the Contractor
shall be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for products or services satisfactorily
performed or provided.

The State may terminate the contract immediately for the following reasons:

a. if directed to do so by statute;

b. Contractor has made an assignment for the benefit of creditors, has admitted in writing its inability
to pay debts as they mature, or has ceased operating in the normal course of business;

c. a trustee or receiver of the Contractor or of any substantial part of the Contractor’'s assets has
been appointed by a court;

d. fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement, malfeasance, misfeasance, or illegal conduct pertaining

to performance under the contract by its Contractor, its employees, officers, directors, or
shareholders;

e. an involuntary proceeding has been commenced by any Party against the Contractor under any
one of the chapters of Title 11 of the United States Code and (i) the proceeding has been pending
for at least sixty (60) calendar days; or (ii) the Contractor has consented, either expressly or by
operation of law, to the entry of an order for relief; or (iii) the Contractor has been decreed or
adjudged a debtor;

f. a voluntary petition has been filed by the Contractor under any of the chapters of Title 11 of the
United States Code;

9. Contractor intentionally discloses confidential information;

h. Contractor has or announces it will discontinue support of the deliverable; and,

i. In the event funding is no fonger available.
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W.

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

1

Upon contract closeout for any reason the Contractor shall within 30 days, unless stated otherwise herein:

1 Transfer all completed or partially completed deliverables to the State;

2, Transfer ownership and title to all completed or partially completed deliverables to the State;

3 Return to the State all information and data, unless the Contractor is permitted to keep the information or
data by contract or rule of law. Contractor may retain one copy of any information or data as required to
comply with applicable work product documentation standards or as are automatically retained in the
course of Contractor's routine back up procedures;

4, Cooperate with any successor Contactor, person or entity in the assumption of any or all of the obligations
of this contract;

5. Cooperate with any successor Contactor, person or entity with the transfer of information or data related to
this contract;

6. Return or vacate any state owned real or personal property; and,

7. Return all data in a mutually acceptable format and manner.

Nothing in this Section should be construed to require the Contractor to surrender intellectual property, real or
personal property, or information or data owned by the Contractor for which the State has no legal claim.
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. CONTRACTOR DUTIES

A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR / OBLIGATIONS

Reject & Provide
Accept Reject Alternative within .
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation el = i

Response (Initial)

|"\ ((;"
4'- "

It is agreed that the Contractor is an independent contractor and that nothing contained herein is intended or should
be construed as creating or establishing a relationship of employment, agency, or a partnership.

The Contractor is solely responsible for fulfilling the contract. The Contractor or the Contractor's representative
shall be the sole point of contact regarding all contractual matters.

The Contractor shall secure, at its own expense, all personnel required to perform the services under the contract.
The personnel the Contractor uses to fulfill the contract shall have no contractual or other legal relationship with the
State; they shall not be considered employees of the State and shall not be entitled to any compensation, rights or
benefits from the State, including but not limited to, tenure rights, medical and hospital care, sick and vacation
leave, severance pay, or retirement benefits.

By-name personnel commitments made in the Contractor's proposal shall not be changed without the prior written
approval of the State. Replacement of these personnel, if approved by the State, shall be with personnel of equal
or greater ability and qualifications.

All personnel assigned by the Contractor to the contract shall be employees of the Contractor or a subcontractor,
and shall be fully qualified to perform the work required herein. Personnel employed by the Contractor or a
subcontractor to fulfill the terms of the contract shall remain under the sole direction and control of the Contractor or
the subcontractor respectively.

With respect to its employees, the Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for the following:

1. Any and all pay, benefits, and employment taxes and/or other payroll withholding;

2, Any and all vehicles used by the Contractor's employees, including all insurance required by state law;

3. Damages incurred by Contractor's employees within the scope of their duties under the contract;

4, Maintaining Workers’ Compensation and health insurance that complies with state and federal law and
submitting any reports on such insurance to the extent required by governing faw;

5. Determining the hours to be worked and the duties to be performed by the Contractor's employees; and,

6 All claims on behalf of any person arising out of employment or alleged employment (including without limit

claims of discrimination alleged against the Contractor, its officers, agents, or subcontractors or
subcontractor's employees)

If the Contractor intends to utilize any subcontractor, the subcontractor's level of effort, tasks, and time allocation
should be clearly defined in the contractor's proposal. The Contractor shall agree that it will not utilize any
subcontractors not specifically included in its proposal in the performance of the contract without the prior written
authorization of the State.

The State reserves the right to require the Contractor to reassign or remove from the project any Contractor or
subcontractor employee.

Contractor shall insure that the terms and conditions contained in any contract with a subcontractor does not
conflict with the terms and conditions of this contract.

The Contractor shall include a similar provision, for the protection of the State, in the contract with any
Subcontractor engaged to perform work on this contract.
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B.

EMPLOYEE WORK ELIGIBILITY STATUS

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicltation

Response {Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

T

The Contractor is required and hereby agrees to use a federal immigration verification system to determine the
work eligibility status of employees physically performing services within the State of Nebraska. A federal
immigration verification system means the electronic verification of the work authorization program authorized by
the lllegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, known as the E-Verify
Program, or an equivalent federal program designated by the United States Department of Homeland Security or
other federal agency authorized to verify the work eligibility status of an employee.

If the Contractor is an individual or sole proprietorship, the following applies:

1. The Contractor must complete the United States Citizenship Attestation Form, available on the
Department of Administrative Services website at hitp://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

2, The completed United States Attestation Form should be submitted with the solicitation response.

3. If the Contractor indicates on such attestation form that he or she is a qualified alien, the Contractor agrees

to provide the US Citizenship and Immigration Services documentation required to verify the Contractor's
lawful presence in the United States using the Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements (SAVE)
Program.

4. The Contractor understands and agrees that lawful presence in the United States is required and the
Contractor may be disqualified or the contract terminated if such lawful presence cannot be verified as
required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108.

C. COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT /
NONDISCRIMINATION (Statutory)
The Contractor shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal statutes and regulations regarding civil
rights laws and equal opportunity employment. The Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act prohibits Contractors
of the State of Nebraska, and their Subcontractors, from discriminating against any employee or applicant for
employment, with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, compensation, or privileges of employment because of
race, color, religion, sex, disability, marital status, or national origin (Neb. Rev. Stat. §48-1101 to 48-1125). The
Contractor guarantees compliance with the Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, and breach of this provision
shall be regarded as a material breach of contract. The Contractor shall insert a similar provision in all
Subcontracts for goods and services to be covered by any contract resulting from this solicitation.

D. COOPERATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within :
(initial) | (Initial) Solicitation NOIESICONNERES

Response (Initial)

NS/

Contractor may be required to work with or in close proximity to other contractors or individuals that may be working
on same or different projects. The Contractor shall agree to cooperate with such other contractors or individuals,
and shall not commit or permit any act which may interfere with the performance of work by any other contractor or
individual. Contractor is not required to compromise Contractor's intellectual property or proprietary information
unless expressly required to do so by this contract.
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DISCOUNTS
Prices quoted shall be inclusive of ALL trade discounts. Cash discount terms of less than thirty (30) days will not be
considered as part of the proposal. Cash discount periods will be computed from the date of receipt of a properly

executed claim voucher or the date of completion of delivery of all items in a satisfactory condition, whichever is
later.

F. PRICES
Prices quoted shall be net, including transportation and delivery charges fully prepaid by the contractor, F.O.B.
destination named in the solicitation. No additional charges will be allowed for packing, packages, or partial
delivery costs. When an arithmetic error has been made in the extended total, the unit price will govern.
All prices, costs, and terms and conditions submitted in the proposal shall remain fixed and valid commencing on
the opening date of the proposal until the contract terminates or expires.
The State reserves the right to deny any requested price increase. No price increases are to be billed to any
State Agencies prior to written amendment of the contract by the parties.
The State will be given full proportionate benefit of any decreases for the term of the contract.

G. COST CLARIFICATION
The State reserves the right to review all aspects of cost for reasonableness and to request clarification of any
proposal where the cost component shows significant and unsupported deviation from industry standards or in
areas where detailed pricing is required.

H. PERMITS, REGULATIONS, LAWS

Reject & Provide
Accept Reject Alternative within .
(nitlal) | (Initial) Solicitation AT AT

Response (Initlal)

ko

The contract price shall include the cost of all royalties, licenses, permits, and approvals, whether arising from
patents, trademarks, copyrights or otherwise, that are in any way involved in the contract. The Contractor shall
obtain and pay for all royalties, licenses, and permits, and approvals necessary for the execution of the contract.
The Contractor must guarantee that it has the full legal right to the materials, supplies, equipment, software, and
other items used to execute this contract.

OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION AND DATA / DELIVERABLES

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

A

The State shall have the unlimited right to publish, duplicate, use, and disclose all information and data developed
or obtained by the Contractor on behalf of the State pursuant to this contract.

The State shall own and hold exclusive title to any deliverable developed as a result of this contract. Contractor
shall have no ownership interest or title, and shall not patent, license, or copyright, duplicate, transfer, sell, or
exchange, the design, specifications, concept, or deliverable.
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J.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Reject & Provide
(Algict?apl; (T:Ijt?glt) Alt%rgl?:li¥:t£:h'n NOTES/COMMENTS:
Response (Initial) .
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The Contractor shall throughout the term of the contract maintain insurance as specified herein and provide the
State a current Certificate of Insurance/Acord Form (COl) verifying the coverage. The Contractor shall not
commence work on the contract until the insurance is in place. If Contractor subcontracts any portion of the
Contract the Contractor must, throughout the term of the contract, either:

1. Provide equivalent insurance for each subcontractor and provide a COl verifying the coverage for the
subcontractor;

2. Require each subcontractor to have equivalent insurance and provide written notice to the State that the
Contractor has verified that each subcontractor has the required coverage; or,

3. Provide the State with copies of each subcontractor's Certificate of Insurance evidencing the required
coverage.

The Contractor shall not allow any Subcontractor to commence work until the Subcontractor has equivalent
insurance. The failure of the State to require a COl, or the failure of the Contractor to provide a COIl or require
subcontractor insurance shall not limit, relieve, or decrease the liability of the Contractor hereunder.

In the event that any policy written on a claims-made basis terminates or is canceled during the term of the contract
or within two (2) years of termination or expiration of the contract, the contractor shall obtain an extended discovery
or reporting period, or a new insurance policy, providing coverage required by this contract for the term of the
contract and two (2) years following termination or expiration of the contract.

If by the terms of any insurance a mandatory deductible is required, or if the Contractor elects to increase the
mandatory deductible amount, the Contractor shall be responsible for payment of the amount of the deductible in
the event of a paid claim.

Notwithstanding any other clause in this Contract, the State may recover up to the liability limits of the insurance
policies required herein.

1. WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE

The Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract the statutory Workers'’
Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the contactors’ employees to be engaged in
work on the project under this contract and, in case any such work is sublet, the Contractor shall require
the Subcontractor similarly to provide Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of
the Subcontractor's employees to be engaged in such work. This policy shall be written to meet the
statutory requirements for the state in which the work is to be performed, including Occupational Disease.
The policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State. The COIl shall contain the
mandatory COI subrogation waiver language found hereinafter. The amounts of such insurance shall
not be less than the limits stated hereinafter. For employees working in the State of Nebraska, the policy
must be written by an entity authorized by the State of Nebraska Department of Insurance to write
Workers' Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance for Nebraska employees.

2. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE AND COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

INSURANCE

The Contractor shall take out and maintain during the life of this contract such Commercial General
Liability Insurance and Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance as shall protect Contractor and any
Subcontractor performing work covered by this contract from claims for damages for bodily injury,
including death, as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise from operations under this
contract, whether such operation be by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either of them, and the amounts of such insurance shall not be less than limits
stated hereinafter.
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The Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, and provide
Premises/Operations, Products/Completed Operations, Independent Contractors, Personal Injury, and
Contractual Liability coverage. The policy shall include the State, and others as required by the
contract documents, as Additional Insured(s). This policy shall be primary, and any insurance or
self-insurance carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-contributory. The COI
shall contain the mandatory COI liability waiver language found hereinafter. The Commercial
Automobile Liability Insurance shall be written to cover all Owned, Non-owned, and Hired vehicles.

REQUIRED INSURANCE COVERAGE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

General Aggregate $2,000,000

Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000

Personal/Advertising Injury $1,000,000 per occurrence

Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000 per occurrence

Medical Payments $10,000 any one person

Damage to Rented Premises (Fire) $300,000 each occurrence

Contractual Included
Independent Contractors Included
Abuse & Molestation included

If higher limits are required, the Umbrella/Excess Liability limits are allowed to satisfy the higher limit.

WORKER'’S COMPENSATION

Employers Liability Limits $500K/$500K/$500K
Statutory Limits- All States Statutory - State of Nebraska
Voluntary Compensation Statutory |

COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000 combined single limit

Include All Owned, Hired & Non-Owned Automobile
liability

Included

Motor Carrier Act Endorsement Where Applicable

UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY

Over Primary Insurance | $5,000,000 per occurrence

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Professional liability (Medical Malpractice) Limits consistent with Nebraska Medical | . . h k. 2
Qualification Under Nebraska Excess Fund Malpractice Cap v . J,..f?i
All Other Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) $1,000,000 Per Claim / Aggregate { V‘:

COMMERCIAL CRIME

Crime/Employee Dishonesty Including 3rd Party $1,000,000
Fidelity

CYBER LIABILITY

Breach of Privacy, Security Breach, Denial of $5,000,000

Service, Remediation, Fines and Penalties

MANDATORY COI SUBROGATION WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Workers' Compensation policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State of Nebraska.”

MANDATORY COI LIABILITY WAIVER LANGUAGE

“Commercial General Liability & Commercial Automobile Liability policies shall name the State of
Nebraska as an Additional Insured and the policies shall be primary and any insurance or self-insurance
carried by the State shall be considered secondary and non-contributory as additionally insured.”
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EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE
The Contractor shall furnish the Contract Manager, with a certificate of insurance coverage complying with
the above requirements prior to beginning work at:

DHHS Division of Public Health, Office of Health Disparities and Health Equity
Attn: Administrator

Address P.O. Box 95026

City, State, Zip Lincoln, NE, 68509

Email dhha.minorityhealth@nebraska.gov

These certificates or the cover sheet shall reference the RFP number, and the certificates shall include the
name of the company, policy numbers, effective dates, dates of expiration, and amounts and types of
coverage afforded. If the State is damaged by the failure of the Contractor to maintain such insurance,
then the Contractor shall be responsible for all reasonable costs properly attributable thereto.

Reasonable notice of cancellation of any required insurance policy must be submitted to the contract
manager as listed above when issued and a new coverage binder shall be submitted immediately to
ensure no break in coverage.

DEVIATIONS
The insurance requirements are subject to limited negotiation. Negotiation typically includes, but is not
necessarily limited to, the correct type of coverage, necessity for Workers’ Compensation, and the type of

automobile coverage carried by the Contractor.

K. NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CONTRACTOR BREACH
Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ”
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation IO S A8
Response (Initial)
s ¢
If Contractor breaches the contract or anticipates breaching the contract the Contractor shall immediately give
written notice to the State. The notice shall explain the breach or potential breach, and may include a request for a
waiver of the breach if so desired. The State may, at its discretion, temporarily or permanently waive the breach.
By granting a temporary waiver, the State does not forfeit any rights or remedies to which the State is entitled by
law or equity, or pursuant to the provisions of the contract. Failure to give immediate notice, however, may be
grounds for denial of any request for a waiver of a breach.
L. ANTITRUST
Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ]
(nitial) | (Initial) Solicitation NOUESEOMMENIS:

Response (Initial)

W

The Contractor hereby assigns to the State any and all claims for overcharges as to goods and/or services provided
in connection with this contract resulting from antitrust violations which arise under antitrust laws of the United
States and the antitrust laws of the State.
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M.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

ko

By submitting a proposal, bidder certifies that no relationship exists between the bidder and any person or entity
which either is, or gives the appearance of, a conflict of interest related to this Request for Proposal or project.

Bidder further certifies that bidder will not employ any individual known by bidder to have a conflict of interest nor
shalt bidder take any action or acquire any interest, either directly or indirectly, which will conflict in any manner or

degree with the performance of its contractual obligations hereunder or which creates an actual or appearance of
conflict of interest.

If there is an actual or perceived conflict of interest, bidder shall provide with its proposal a full disclosure of the
facts describing such actual or perceived conflict of interest and a proposed mitigation plan for consideration. The
State will then consider such disclosure and proposed mitigation plan and either approve or reject as part of the
overall bid evaluation.

N.  STATE PROPERTY

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within .
(initial) | (Initial) Solicitation Rl e

Response (Initial)

)

The Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and custody of any State-owned property which is furnished
for the Contractor's use during the performance of the contract. The Contractor shall reimburse the State for any
loss or damage of such property; normal wear and tear is expected.

0. SITE RULES AND REGULATIONS

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within )
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation NOTES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

>

The Contractor shall use its best efforts to ensure that its employees, agents, and Subcontractors comply with site
rules and regulations while on State premises. If the Contractor must perform on-site work outside of the daily
operational hours set forth by the State, it must make arrangements with the State to ensure access to the facility
and the equipment has been arranged. No additional payment will be made by the State on the basis of lack of
access, unless the State fails to provide access as agreed to in writing between the State and the Contractor.

P. ADVERTISING

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within .
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation NOTES/COMMENTS:

Response (Initial)

K7

The Contractor agrees not to refer to the contract award in advertising in such a manner as to state or imply that the
company or its goods or services are endorsed or preferred by the State. Any publicity releases pertaining to the
project shall not be issued without prior written approval from the State.
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NEBRASKA TECHNOLOGY ACCESS STANDARDS (Statutory)
Contractor shall review the Nebraska Technology Access Standards, found at http:/nitc.nebraska.gov/standards/2-
201.htmi and ensure that products and/or services provided under the contract are in compliance or will comply with
the applicable standards to the greatest degree possible. In the event such standards change during the
Contractor's performance, the State may create an amendment to the contract to request the contract comply with
the changed standard at a cost mutually acceptable to the parties.

R. DISASTER RECOVERY/BACK UP PLAN

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ,
(nitial) | (initial) Solicitation O O

Response (Initial)

%

The Contractor shall have a disaster recovery and back-up plan, of which a copy should be provided upon request
to the State, which includes, but is not limited to equipment, personnel, facilities, and transportation, in order to
continue delivery of goods and services as specified under the specifications in the contract in the event of a
disaster.

S. DRUG POLICY
Reject & Provide
focert | filect | Altematueitin | woresicoumENTs
Response (Initial)
¥
Contractor certifies it maintains a drug free work place environment to ensure worker safety and workplace integrity.
Contractor agrees to provide a copy of its drug free workplace policy at any time upon request by the State.
T. WARRANTY
] Reject & Proyid_e
foeet | st | Alemativeitin | NoesicommEnTs:

Response (Initial)

DKLD

Despite any clause to the contrary, the Contractor represents and warrants that its services hereunder shall be
performed by competent personnel and shall be of professional quality consistent with generaily accepted industry
standards for the performance of such services and shall comply in all respects with the requirements of this
Agreement. For any breach of this warranty, the Contractor shall, for a period of ninety (90) days from performance
of the service, perform the services again, at no cost to Customer, or if Contractor is unable to perform the services
as warranted, Contractor shall reimburse Customer the fees paid to Contractor for the unsatisfactory services. The
rights and remedies of the parties under this warranty are in addition to any other rights and remedies of the parties
provided by law or equity, including, without limitation actual damages, and, as applicable and awarded under the
law, to a prevailing party, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.
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IV. PAYMENT

A. PROHIBITION AGAINST ADVANCE PAYMENT (Statutory)
Neb. Rev. Stat. §§81-2403 states, “[n]Jo goods or services shall be deemed to be received by an agency until all
such goods or services are completely delivered and finally accepted by the agency.”

B. TAXES (Statutory)
The State is not required to pay taxes and assumes no such liability as a result of this solicitation. The Contractor
may request a copy of the Nebraska Department of Revenue, Nebraska Resale or Exempt Sale Certificate for
Sales Tax Exemption, Form 13 for their records. Any property tax payable on the Contractor's equipment which
may be installed in a state-owned facility is the responsibility of the Contractor

C. INVOICES

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within ]
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation NORES £ CNMEN

Response (lInitial)

K>

Invoices for payments must be submitted by the Contractor to the agency requesting the services with sufficient
detail to support payment.

Invoices will include a per-patient per quarter cost to reduce HbA1c rates to achieve outcomes that includes the use
of a CHW. DHHS will provide an invoice template to awarded Contractor(s). The terms and conditions included in
the Contractor's invoice shall be deemed {o be solely for the convenience of the parties. No terms or conditions of
any such invoice shall be binding upon the State, and no action by the State, including without limitation the
payment of any such invoice in whole or in part, shall be construed as binding or estopping the State with respect to
any such term or condition, unless the invoice term or condition has been previously agreed to by the State as an
amendment to the contract.

D. INSPECTION AND APPROVAL

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within )
(nitial) | (Initial) Solicitation DRJIESIC UNENDS:

Response (Initial)

W eHA ad@ébuo;% el

Final inspection and approval of all work required under the contract shall be performed by the designated State
officials.

The State and/or its authorized representatives shall have the right to enter any premises where the Contractor or
Subcontractor duties under the contract are being performed, and to inspect, monitor or otherwise evaluate the
work being performed. All inspections and evaluations shall be at reasonable times and in a manner that will not
unreasonably delay work.
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E. PAYMENT (Statutory)

Reject & Provide
Accept | Reject Alternative within .
(Initial) | (Initial) Solicitation O NS

Response (Initial)

M5

Payment will be made by the responsible agency in compliance with the State of Nebraska Prompt Payment Act
(See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2403). The State may require the Contractor to accept payment by electronic means
such as ACH deposit. In no event shall the State be responsible or liable to pay for any goods and services
provided by the Contractor prior to the Effective Date of the contract, and the Contractor hereby waives any claim or
cause of action for any such services.

LATE PAYMENT (Statutory)
The Contractor may charge the responsible agency interest for late payment in compliance with the State of
Nebraska Prompt Payment Act (See Neb. Rev. Stat. §81-2401 through 81-2408).

SUBJECT TO FUNDING / FUNDING OUT CLAUSE FOR LOSS OF APPROPRIATIONS (Statutory)

The State’s obligation to pay amounts due on the Contract for a fiscal years following the current fiscal year is
contingent upon legislative appropriation of funds. Should said funds not be appropriated, the State may terminate
the contract with respect to those payments for the fiscal year(s) for which such funds are not appropriated. The
State will give the Contractor written notice thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of termination. All
obligations of the State to make payments after the termination date will cease. The Contractor shall be entitled to
receive just and equitable compensation for any authorized work which has been satisfactorily completed as of the
termination date. In no event shall the Contractor be paid for a loss of anticipated profit.

RIGHT TO AUDIT (First Paragraph is Statutory)

The State shall have the right to audit the Contractor's performance of this contract upon a thirty (30) days’ written
notice. Contractor shall utilize generally accepted accounting principles, and shall maintain the accounting records,
and other records and information relevant to the contract (Information) to enable the State to audit the contract.
(Neb. Rev. Stat. §84-304 et seq.) The State may audit and the Contractor shall maintain, the Information during the
term of the contract and for a period of five (5) years after the completion of this contract or until ail issues or
litigation are resolved, whichever is later. The Contractor shall make the information available to the State at
Contractor's place of business or a location acceptable to both Parties during normal business hours. If this is not
practical or the Contractor so elects, the Contractor may provide electronic or paper copies of the Information. The
State reserves the right to examine, make copies of, and take notes on any Information relevant to this contract,
regardiess of the form or the Information, how it is stored, or who possesses the Information. Under no
circumstance will the Contractor be required to create or maintain documents not kept in the ordinary course of
contractor’s business operations, nor will contractor be required to disclose any information, including but not limited
to product cost data, which is confidential or proprietary to contractor.

Accept
(Initial)

Reject & Provide
Reject Alternative within
(Initial) Solicitation

Response (Initial)

NOTES/COMMENTS:

t

The Parties shall pay their own costs of the audit unless the audit finds a previously undisclosed overpayment by
the State. If a previously undisclosed overpayment exceeds one-half of one percent (.5%) of the total contract
billings, or if fraud, material misrepresentations, or non-performance is discovered on the part of the Contractor, the
Contractor shall reimburse the State for the total costs of the audit. Overpayments and audit costs owed to the
State shall be paid within ninety (90) days of written notice of the claim. The Contractor agrees to correct any
material weaknesses or condition found as a result of the audit.
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V. PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF WORK

A

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The State of Nebraska, Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Public Health, Office of
Health Disparities and Health Equity (OHDHE) is soliciting proposals from qualified bidders to improve health
outcomes for minority populations diagnosed with diabetes in Nebraska's first and third Congressional Districts
through referrals from physicians for the services of Community Health Workers (CHW). The intent of the Minority
Health Initiative (MHI) project is to promote community and clinical linkages to lower Diabetes hemoglobin A1C
(HbA1c) rates for minority populations through referral systems that use bidirectional linkages that include a
Community Health Worker. Respondents are encouraged to partner among the following groups: medical clinics,
community based organizations, local public health departments, and other organizations that provide services to
address the social determinants of health.

1. This RFP provides seven (7) options for bidding:
Option 1, Southeast Region, refer to Option 1 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D
for the corresponding Cost Proposal;

Option 2, Metro Region, refer to Option 2 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D for
the corresponding Cost Proposal;

Option 3, Eastern Region, refer to Option 3 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D for
the corresponding Cost Proposal;

Option 4, Northeast Region, refer to Option 4 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D
for the corresponding Cost Proposal,

Option 5, East Central Region, refer to Option Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D
for the corresponding Cost Proposal;

Option 8, West Central Region, refer to Option 6 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment
D for the corresponding Cost Proposal, and;

Option 7, Western Region, refer to Option 7 Attachment C for technical requirements and Attachment D
for the corresponding Cost Proposal.

Bidders may bid on any of the seven options or all options. in order for a bid to be considered for more
than one option, a complete, separate proposal (Corporate, Technical, and Cost) must be submitted for
EACH option. Each proposal submitted must clearly identify which option is being bid. The State will
evaluate all proposals submitted within each separate option, (Option 1: Southeast Region, Option 2:
Metro Region, Option 3: Eastern Region, Option 4: Northeast Region, Option 5: East Central Region,
Option 6: West Central Region, and Option 7: Western Region.) the highest scoring bidder will be
identified for each option (1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7). The State will then make a determination as to which
option will best meet the State's needs and make an award to the highest scoring bidder for that option.

PROJECT ENVIRONMENT

Nationally, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, diabetes affects 29.1 million people or
9.3% of the US population. Diabetes is the leading cause of kidney failure, heart disease and stroke. Type 2
diabetes accounts for 90% to 95% of all diagnosed cases of diabetes. Diabetes causes serious heaith
complications including blindness, kidney failure and lower-extremity amputations. Individuals with diabetes can
manage the disease with healthy and productive lives and appropriate medications. The American Diabetes
Association estimates the costs of diagnosed diabetes at approximately 327 billion dollars annually.

Minority populations in Nebraska consistently report a higher burden of diabetes than Whites. From 2011-2015, the
rates for American Indians with diabetes was two times higher than the rate for Whites (7.6%). The rate of diabetes
among African Americans and Hispanics were almost two times higher than the White population.

Additionally, Nebraska’s minority populations see higher mortality rates due to diabetes than Whites. From 2011-
2015, American Indians and African Americans reported a mortality rate due to diabetes of between 50.0 and 53.4
per 100,000, compared to 21.2 per 100,000 reported by Whites. Hispanics also reported notably higher rates

(29.3 per 100,000), than Whites.
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STRATEGY

CHWs are trained public health frontline workers who have a close understanding of their community and serve as
liaisons between the healthcare system and underserved populations. They work closely with community members
to provide education, coaching, and social support to improve their health. Community Health Workers have been
used as an intervention in improving a broad range of various health issues including diabetes. The Community
Preventive Services Task Force (CPSTF) recommends the use of Community Health Workers as a cost saving
intervention in the care and management of diabetes.

See https:/iwww.thecommunityquide.org/findings/diabetes-management-interventions-engadging-community-health-
workers.

AVAILABLE FUNDING

The Nebraska Legislature appropriates funds for the purpose of implementing a minority health initiative in counties
with minority populations of five percent or greater in the first and third Congressional Districts as determined by the
most recent federal decennial census (Nebraska State Statute 71-1628.07). Per the United States Census,
minority populations include Black/African American, American Indian/Native American, Asian/Pacific Islander, two
or more Races, and Hispanic populations. Refugee populations may also be served. The Nebraska Department of
Health and Human Services (DHHS) Office of Health Disparities and Health Equity (OHDHE) distributes and
oversees the funding.

Funding is determined based on a per capita amount for each county having 5% or more minority population in
Congressional Districts One and Three. The population is based on the 2010 U.S. Census and the most current
Congressional District map, as required by the Nebraska State Statute § 71-1628.07 and may be subject to change
with the 2020 U.S. Census.

There will be a total of $2,336,569.50 funds available for the awarded period through June 30, 2021. The project
optional renewal periods have an estimated $1,557,713 per year, based on funding availability. Funding is available
for specified regions within Nebraska Congressional Districts One and Three, as shown in Attachment A. Applicants
can apply for one or more regions. However, there will be only one award selected per region.

SCOPE OF WORK

The goal for this RFP is to lower Diabetes HbA1c rates among minority populations in Nebraska through the
provision of effective diabetes management services that are person centered, and culturally responsive to the
patient's medical and social needs.

1. This will be accomplished through:

a. Physician referrals to the services of a Community Health Worker (CHW) and continued
communication between the physician, health care team, and CHW that will take place
throughout the project.

b. The CHW is to meet qualifications identified in section V.F.2.b., Project Requirements, and
address the social determinates of health impacting patient compliance with physician direction.

2, The desired outcome of the MH} project for each region is:
a. Sixty percent (60%) of the diabetic patients who receive services from a Community Health
Worker will reduce their HbA1c by one percentage point, or achieve a HbA1c of 6.5 or lower, by
the end of the initial project period and in each subsequent year.

Bidders are required to meet the outcome of the MHI project in the region for which they are applying.

3. Patient Eligibility:

a. Resident of a qualifying county as defined in Attachment A;

b. Racial or ethnic minority as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau. Refugees are also included as
eligible participants.

c. Diagnosis of Diabetes, defined as having an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher at the time of first contact by
community health worker; and

d. Have a baseline HbA1c test completed within the first three (3) months of first contact by

community health worker.
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F.

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS
Bidders submitting a proposal must ensure the following requirements are met during the project period.

1. REDUCE DIABETES IN MINORITY POPULATIONS

a.

Lower Diabetes HbA1c rates for minority populations using referral systems that incorporate
bidirectional linkages that include a Community Health Worker (CHW) who visits with patients
outside the medical provider facility.

Identify and serve diabetic patients of racial ethnic background to refer to the CHW for services
such as health education, social support, identification of resources, and reinforcement of
diabetes management practices.

Ensure efforts are made to serve minorities in each of the identified counties, whether or not
clinical services exist within those counties.

Provide baseline and yearly HbA1c measures for all diabetic patient participants. Baseline must
be with taken no more than three (3) months before or after project participation date.

Ensure patient blood glucose readings are taken on a consistent basis and an average per
quarter is provided each quarter.

Provide culturally appropriate diabetes education and address social determinates of health
impacting diabetes management success.

Identify participating physicians and documentation of their commitment to refer minority diabetic
patients and for monthly clinical team communication with the CHW.

2, PROVIDE CHW STAFFING WITH CLINICAL, COMMUNITY, AND PUBLIC HEALTH LINKAGES

Provide a CHW who:

i Works with community organizations and local health departments;

ii. Will be part of a clinical team and serve as a liaison between the health clinic/health
system, the patient and community resources;

iii. Provides necessary resources to optimize communication and support for diabetic
education, compliance with physician care management and addresses social
determinates of health;

iv. Meets monthly with the clinical team to discuss patients’ diabetic goals and updates on
social determinates of health impacting patients’ management of diabetes; and
V. Is able to address language and cultural barriers experienced by patients.

CHW qualifications must:

i. Be a trusted member of the community with a close understanding of the community
served;

ii. Have a thorough understanding of diabetic management;

iii. Be able to provide culturally appropriate health education and information;

iv. Be able to address language and cultural barriers;

V. Be familiar with and able to access resources to address the social determinates of
health that affect the patient's ability to manage their diabetes; and

vi. Be able to communicate the successes, limitations, and barriers faced by the patient in

managing their diabetes with the medical provider.

3. DEMONSTRATE EXPERTISE AND CULTURAL COMPETENCE

a.

Complete a Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) Standards assessment
developed by the Nebraska DHHS Office of Health Disparities and Health Equity within the first
three (3) months of the start of the project and ensure steps are taken to provide culturally and
linguistically appropriate services to project participants. The assessment can be accessed at
http://dhhs.ne.gov/Pages/HDHE-Training.aspx.

If not already taken within the last two (2) years, ensure the Living Well with Diabetes training is
taken by the CHW within the first three (3) months of the award contract or other time period
approved by DHHS.

4. ADDRESSS SOCIAL DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH

Provide value added services that will be used to address the social determinants such as
transportation, translation, day care, or other needs that will assist with meeting the project
outcomes. For each value added service identify the following:

i. Who will be offered services?

ii. What kind of services will be offered?

ifi. When and/or how often will the services be needed or offered?
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G.

DELIVERABLES

Contractor will be required to provide a report on patient outputs and project outcomes as detailed below.

1.

REPORT ON PATIENT OUTPUTS & PROJECT OUTCOMES

Provide a completed patient and project report on a quarterly basis due thirty (30) calendar days after the
end of each quarter. Invoices for payments must be submitted by the Contractor to the agency requesting
the services with sufficient detail to support payment.

Quarterly reporting is required electronically through a system identified by DHHS and must include the
following:

a.

Patient Reporting is to be completed using de-identified unique numbers for each patient and
must include all of the elements below:

vi.
vii.

viii.

County in which patient resides;

Race and ethnicity for each patient, including refugee status if applicable;

Provide HbA1c data for identified patient as a baseline and at the end of the project
period, including the date of the HbA1c test. Baseline must be with taken no more than
three (3) months before or after project start date for each client. The final reading
cannot be taken more than three (3) months prior to the end of the project period;
Average of blood glucose readings per client per quarter;

Type of insurance carried by the patient including Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance
or none;

Number of encounters CWH has with each patient;

Number of meetings the CHW has with the medical provider or care team for each
patient;

Information on the services provided and type of social determinants of health issues
address with each client; and

When available, information on the number of emergency room visits and hospital
admissions for each patient for reasons related to diabetes and associated chronic
diseases.

Project Reporting:

Success stories that demonstrate how addressing the social determinants of health
assisted in improvements in diabetic self- care diabetic management, and reduction of
HbA1c rates. Success stories may also include reductions in emergency room visits and
hospital admissions.

Current number of active diabetic clients CHW is working with;

Number of referrals from providers;

Number of CHW's performing services; and

A narrative section on what outreach efforts took place in each county for the region.
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VI. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS

This section documents the requirements that should be met by the bidder in preparing the Technical and Cost Proposal.
The bidder should select an Option(s) in Section V.A.1. to submit a proposal(s) for and then complete a separate bid
proposal for each Option selected. A complete proposal shall have a thorough response Section VI.A.1., Corporate
Overview, Attachment C, Technical Requirements and Attachment D, Cost Proposal. Failure to submit Attachment D may
result in disqualification. Failure to respond to a specific requirement may be the basis for elimination from consideration
during the State’s comparative evaluation.

Proposals are due by the Proposal Opening date and time as shown in the Schedule of Events. Content requirements for
the Technical and Cost Proposal are presented separately in Attachment C, Technical Requirements, and Attachment D,

Cost Proposal.

A. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
1. CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The Corporate Overview section of the Technical Proposal should consist of the following subdivisions:

a. CONTRACTOR IDENTIFICATION AND INFORMATION
The bidder should provide the full company or corporate name, address of the company's
headquarters, entity organization (corporation, partnership, proprietorship), state in which the
contractor is incorporated or otherwise organized to do business, year in which the contractor first
organized to do business and whether the name and form of organization has changed since first
organized.

b. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The bidder should provide financial statements applicable to the firm. If publicly held, the
contractor should provide a copy of the corporation's most recent audited financial reports and
statements, and the name, address, and telephone number of the fiscally responsible
representative of the contractor's financial or banking organization.
If the bidder is not a publicly held corporation, either the reports and statements required of a
publicly held corporation, or a description of the organization, including size, longevity, client
base, areas of specialization and expertise, and any other pertinent information, should be
submitted in such a manner that proposal evaluators may reasonably formulate a determination
about the stability and financial strength of the organization. Additionally, a non-publicly held firm
should provide a banking reference.
The bidder must disclose any and all judgments, pending or expected litigation, or other real or
potential financial reversals, which might materially affect the viability or stability of the
organization, or state that no such condition is known to exist.
The State may elect to use a third party to conduct credit checks as part of the corporate
overview evaluation.

c. CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP
If any change in ownership or control of the company is anticipated during the twelve (12) months
following the proposal due date, the bidder should describe the circumstances of such change
and indicate when the change will likely occur. Any change of ownership to an awarded
contractor(s) will require notification to the State.

d. OFFICE LOCATION
The contractor's office location responsible for performance pursuant to an award of a contract
with the State of Nebraska should be identified.

e. RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE STATE

The bidder should describe any dealings with the State over the previous three (3) years. If the
organization, its predecessor, or any Party named in the bidder's proposal response has
contracted with the State, the bidder should identify the contract number(s) and/or any other
information available to identify such contract(s). If no such contracts exist, so declare.
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BIDDER’'S EMPLOYEE RELATIONS TO STATE

If any employee of any agency of the State of Nebraska is employed by the bidder or is a
Subcontractor to the bidder as of the due date for proposal submission, identify all such persons
by name, position held with the bidder , and position held with the State (including job title and
agency). Describe the responsibilities of such persons within the proposing organization. If, after
review of this information by the State, it is determined that a conflict of interest exists or may
exist, the bidder may be disqualified from further consideration in this proposal. If no such
relationship exists, so declare.

CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

If the bidder or any proposed subcontractor has had a contract terminated for default during the
past five (5) years, all such instances must be described as required below. Termination for
default is defined as a notice to stop performance delivery due to the contractor's non-
performance or poor performance, and the issue was either not litigated due to inaction on the
part of the contractor or litigated and such litigation determined the contractor to be in default.

It is mandatory that the bidder submit full details of all termination for default experienced during
the past five (5) years, including the other Party's name, address, and telephone number. The
response to this section must present the bidder's position on the matter. The State will evaluate
the facts and will score the bidder's proposal accordingly. If no such termination for default has
been experienced by the bidder in the past five (5) years, so declare.

If at any time during the past five (5) years, the bidder has had a contract terminated for
convenience, non-performance, non-allocation of funds, or any other reason, describe fully all
circumstances surrounding such termination, including the name and address of the other
contracting Party.

SUMMARY OF BIDDER'S CORPORATE EXPERIENCE

The bidder should provide a summary matrix listing the bidder's previous projects similar to this
solicitation in size, scope, and complexity. The State will use no more than three (3) narrative
project descriptions submitted by the bidder during its evaluation of the proposal.

The bidder should address the following:

vi. Provide narrative descriptions to highlight the similarities between the bidder's
experience and this solicitation. These descriptions should include:

a) The time period of the project;

b) The scheduled and actual completion dates;

c) The Bidder's responsibilities;

d) For reference purposes, a customer name (including the name of a contact
person, a current telephone number, a facsimile number, and e-mail address);
and

e) Each project description should identify whether the work was performed as the

prime contractor or as a subcontractor. If a bidder performed as the prime
contractor, the description should provide the originally scheduled completion
date and budget, as well as the actual (or currently planned) completion date
and actual (or currently planned) budget.

vii. Contractor and subcontractor(s) experience should be listed separately. Narrative
descriptions submitted for subcontractors should be specifically identified as
subcontractor projects.

viii. If the work was performed as a subcontractor, the narrative description should identify
the same information as requested for the contractors above. In addition,
subcontractors should identify what share of contract costs, project responsibilities, and
time period were performed as a subcontractor.
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i. SUMMARY OF BIDDER’S PROPOSED PERSONNEL/MANAGEMENT APPROACH
The bidder should present a detailed description of its proposed approach to the management of
the project.

The bidder should identify how the professionals working on the project will promote community
and clinical linkages to lower Diabetes hemoglobin HbA1c rates for minority populations through
referral systems that use bidirectional linkages that include a Community Health Worker.

i Bidders should describe the capacity of the organization to successfully implement the
project in the following ways:

a) The ability, capacity, and skill of the applicant and significant partners to
implement the RFP requirements;
b) Organizational structure to provide services in all eligible counties.

ii. Respondents must explain how the provision of medical referrals with ongoing
communication, and community health worker services will be provided. Evidence of
formal and informal relationships among the following groups:

a) medical clinics,

b) community based organizations,

c) local public health departments, and

d) other organizations that can provide services to address the social

determinants of health.

jiii. The bidder should identify key personnel who will work on the State’s project. The
names and titles of the team proposed for assignment to the State project should be
identified in full, with a description of the team leadership, interface and support
functions, and reporting relationships. The primary work assigned to each person
should also be identified.

The bidder should provide resumes for all key personnel proposed by the bidder to work
on the project. The State will consider the resumes as an indicator of the bidder's
understanding of the skill mixes required to carry out the requirements of the solicitation
in addition to assessing the experience of specific individuals.

Resumes should not be longer than three (3) pages. Resumes should include, at a
minimum, academic background and degrees, professional certifications, understanding
of the process, and at least three (3) references (name, address, and telephone number)
who can attest to the competence and skill level of the individual. Any changes in
proposed personnel shall only be implemented after written approval from the State.

j- SUBCONTRACTORS
If the bidder intends to subcontract any part of its performance hereunder, the bidder should
provide:

i Name, address, and telephone number of the subcontractor(s);
a. specific tasks for each subcontractor(s);
b. percentage of performance hours intended for each subcontract; and
c. total percentage of subcontractor(s) performance hours.

TECHNICAL APPROACH
The technical proposal section is a written narrative response to the Corporate Overview and completion
of Attachment C, Technical Requirements.
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V.F. Project Requirements

V.F.1. Reduce Diabetes in Minority Populations

V.F.1.a | Lower diabetes HbA1c rates for minority populations using referral systems that incorporate bidirectional linkages that include a
Community Health Worker (CHW) who visits with patients outside the medical provider facility. Bidder should describe the referral
system used.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld's Community Health Workers known as promotoras will refer minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher
to OneWorld's medical clinicians for diabetes care management. OneWorld currently cares for 450 diabetic patients from Sarpy County.
OneWorld's medical clinicians will direct minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher to the promotoras for diabetes
care management. Patients with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher will be identified in OneWorld's Electronic Health Records (EHR) system.
Medical clinicians will enter a referral to the promotoras in the EHR. OneWorld's Diabetes Case Manager has access to the EHR, which
utilizes an integrated population management module to identify patient groups according to criteria including HbA1c measures. Diabetes
Case Manager will routinely generate and review reports of minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher. From
reports and the EHR, the Diabetes Case Manager will also refer patients to the promotoras via email. The promotoras will measure diabetic
patients’ progress in reducing their HbA1c rates. The promotoras will coach diabetic patients about nutrition and wellness. The promotoras
will also enroll diabetic patients in OneWorld's certified diabetes classes. The promotoras will measure blood pressure, blood sugar and
Body Mass Index (BMI) to identify at risk for obesity, cardiovascular health and diabetes (including prediabetes). The promotoras may assist
minority patients with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher in scheduling appointments with OneWorld medical clinicians, visiting patients in their
homes, or meeting with them regularly at OneWorld.

V.F.1.b. | Describe how the program will identify and serve diabetic patients of racial ethnic background to refer to the CHW for services
f such as health education, social support, identification of resources, and reinforcement of diabetes management practices.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld collects demographic information including home address, race and ethnicity and enters that information in the Electronic Health
Records (EHR) system when patients visit a medical clinician. OneWorld will utilize demographic information, knowledge of patients’ primary
language and cultural background, and HbA1c measures to identify minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher who
need of health education, social support, identification of resources, and reinforcement of diabetes management practices. OneWorld's
medical clinicians will provide health services and education in English and Spanish to minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of
6.5 or higher. After referral to the promotoras, the promotoras will provide health education about diabetes to minority patients from Sarpy
County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher through technology-based case management in English, Spanish and other languages by phone, text
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V.F. Project Requirements

and e-mail and through face-to-face meetings. OneWorld’s medical clinicians and promotoras will connect minority patients in need of
clothing, housing, food, employment, legal assistance, medical equipment, and transportation to OneWorld’s bilingual social work team.
Patients may meet with social workers on the same day as their medical appointments or at other appointment times throughout the week.
OneWorld’s social workers will identify minority patients’ needs and connect them to resources related to the following issues: child, elder
and vulnerable abuse and neglect; child support; clothing needs; support for grief, parenting, seniors and LGBTQ+; domestic violence and
human trafficking; educational needs; employment/unemployment; financial instability; food insecurity; homelessness; medication assistance;
transportation needs; pregnancy; substance use disorders; utility assistance; and Social Security/disability claims. OneWorld maintains a list
of Community Resources that social assistance workers and promotoras use to assist patients. At medical appointments and with the EHR,
OneWorld’s medical clinicians and a Diabetes Case Manager will review HbA1c measures to identify minority patients from Sarpy County
with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher who will benefit from support, coaching and monitoring. The promotoras will teach and reinforce diabetes
management practices.

'V.F.1.c. | Describe how the program will ensure efforts are made to serve minorities in each of the identified counties, whether or not clinical
services exist within those counties.

Bidder Response:

In 2018, 18% of OneWorld's patients lived in Sarpy County. OneWorld operates a clinic in Bellevue in Sarpy County, and its largest clinic in
South Omaha stands approximately 1.5 miles north of Sarpy County. Patients from Sarpy County also receive care at OneWorld's clinics in
West Omaha and Northwest Omaha. In the Diabetes Care Management for Minorities project, OneWorld will reach and serve minority
patients in Sarpy County by continuing its partnerships with churches including Church of the Holy Spirit, Harrison Street Baptist Church
Saint James, Cathedral Church-God In Christ. In addition to welcoming minorities to services and as members, these churches allow
OneWorld's promotoras to offer on-site screenings. OneWorld will continue to collaborate with the Lund Company Apartments for the
Southroads Apartments and Brickstone Apartments in Sarpy County. The Lund Company oversee complexes with sizable minority
populations. The company allows promotoras to screen tenants in community rooms and public spaces at the apartment complexes.
OneWorld will continue its partnerships with the Bellevue Public Library and Bellevue Welcome Center to offer health education and
screenings. Screenings will result in patients’ establishing medical homes and receiving case management at OneWorld. OneWorld will also
maintain its clinical partnerships with the University of Nebraska Medical Center and Creighton University School of Medicine. OneWorld's
Diabetes Case Manager and promotoras will also reach out to minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher identified
by medical clinicians in the Electronic Health Records (EHR) system.
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V.F.1.d. | Describe the system used to provide baseline and yearly HbA1c measures for all diabetic patients with current HbA1c reading of
above 6.5. Baseline must be with taken no more than three months before or after program participation date.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld will measure the HbA1c of Patients with a past diagnosis of diabetes or with indicators of ab elevated HbA1c at the patients’ first
appointment with a medical clinician after January 1, 2020, and at subsequent medical appointments. OneWorld will ask patients with an
HbA1c of 6.5 or higher including minority patients from Sarpy County to return for monthly diabetes checkups, case management with the
promotoras, and diabetic education classes when their HbA1c is greater than or equal to 9% and every three months when their HbA1c is
less than 9%. OneWorld's clinical policy and procedures include a standing order that requires medical staff to measure and document the
HbA1c of diabetic patients at every appointment. OneWorld utilizes an Electronic Health Records (EHR) system known as NextGen that
sends a reminder to clinical staff to collect the HbA1c of diabetic patients at their appointments. OneWorld will set a reminder to measure the
HbA1c of minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher at yearly intervals.

V.F.1e. Describe how the program will ensure patient blood glucose readings are taken on a consistent basis and an average per
quarter is provided each quarter.

Bidder Response:

To ensure HbA1c readings are taken on a consistent basis, OneWorld's Electronic Health Records (EHR) system will send a reminder to
clinical staff to measure the HbA1c of diabetic patients at every appointment in compliance with OneWorld’s standing order. Again,
OneWorld’s promotoras will ask minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher to return to OneWorld for a diabetes
checkup every month when their most recent HbA1c is greater than or equal to 9% and every three months when their most recent HbA1c is
less than 9%. OneWorld’'s EHR will also calculate the average HbA1c per quarter for minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of

6.5 or higher.

V.F.1f. Describe how the program will provide culturally appropriate diabetes education and address social determinates of health
impacting diabetes management success.

Bidder Response:

To provide culturally appropriate diabetes education to minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher, OneWorld’s
promotoras and/or bilingual and bicultural diabetes educators will identify the educational needs of patients and families through the
assessment of patients’ knowledge and medical/social history for social determinants of health including ability to access care and
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medications, coping skills and patients’ goals; age-specific, cultural and spiritual influences; environmental conditions; and support systems.
The multidisciplinary team of medical clinicians, promotoras, Diabetes Case Manager, and diabetes educators will develop culturally
appropriate individualized education plans that address social determinants of heath for diabetes patients and their families. OneWorld will
tailor the diabetes education and case management to non-English speakers, patients limited English proficiency and patients with low
literacy in any language. Educational materials will include illustrated graphics, and OneWorld's team will use teach-back methods to confirm
patients’ understanding. OneWorld will also take age, religious and socio-economic considerations into account when developing and
delivering diabetes education and case management to culturally diverse patients. The promotoras and/or bilingual diabetes may utilize
OneWorld’s social assistance workers in order to connect diabetic patients with resources related to the following issues: child, elder and
vulnerable abuse and neglect; child support; clothing needs; support for grief, parenting, seniors and LGBTQ+; domestic violence and human
trafficking; educational needs; employment/unemployment; financial instability; food insecurity; homelessness; ; medication assistance;
transportation needs; pregnancy; substance use disorders; utility assistance; and Social Security/disability claims. The promotoras and
diabetes educators will then provide education to diabetic patients and their families in a variety of settings including classroom, one-on-one
interactions, and small groups to ensure appropriate self-care.

V.F.1.g. Identify participating physicians and attach documentation of their commitment to refer minority diabetic patients and for monthly
clinical team communication with the CHW.

Bidder Response:

Following please find a list of participating medical clinicians who care for diabetic patients at OneWorld:

Alex Dworak, MD
Cristina Hurlbut, MD
Deepthi Samindla, MD
Donna Faber, MD
Henry (Hans) Dethlefs, MD
Jeremy Howe, MD, MPH
Katie Sagrero, DO

Kris Huber, MD

Kris McVea, MD, MPH
Melanie Menning, MD
R. Mario Sanchez, MD
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Alison Rediger, APRN, FNP-C
Bethany Levy, MPAS, PA
Betsy Buschkemper, APRN
Brad Doll, PA

Carrie Hovey (Hoover), APRN
Clara Fynbu Eggert, APRN
Connie Daniel, APRN
Donald Allison, PA

Giana Boyle, PA

lan Mitchell, APRN

Jane Teeter, PA-C

Laura Loewens, APRN
Leah Jorgensen, APRN
Mark Huber, APRN
Melanie Budine, APRN
Michelle Christensen, PA
Michelle Hill, PA

Mindee Swanson, APRN
Mitzi Infante Magana, PA
Reina Griffith, APRN

Sam Balk, PA

Scott Sorensen, PA

Stella Washington, PA
Vicki Bangert, MPAS, PA
Wyatt Stebbins, PA

Attached please find a letter attesting to the commitment of OneWorld's medical clinicians to refer minority patients for diabetic case
management and of OneWorld’s clinical team charged with diabetes management to communicate monthly with the Community Health

Workers known as promotoras.
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V.F.2. Provide CHW Staffing with Clinical, Community, and Public Health Linkages

V.E.2.a.i. | Describe how the CHW will work with community organizations and local health departments.

Bidder Response:

As previously described, Community Health Workers known as promotoras who are integrated into OneWorld’s health team and who have
access to the Electronic Health Record (EHR) will work with community organizations including churches that welcome minorities and the
Lund Company Apartments that house minority populations in Sarpy County. OneWorld will collaborate with Bellevue Public Library and
Bellevue Welcome Center to continue to offer on-site health education and screenings. OneWorld will work with the Consulate of Mexico at
a health window where OneWorld's promotoras provide health education and screenings. OneWorld will also work with Lutheran Family
Services, which re-settles and supports refugees in Nebraska. OneWorld will work with numerous community partners including Metropolitan
Community College, CHI Health, Creighton University, Nebraska AIDS Project, Nebraska Methodist Health System, and the University of
Nebraska Medical Center (UNMC) to care for underserved minority populations during the annual Binational Health Week. OneWorld will
participate in the partners’ events, refer patients and accept referrals, and coordinate services for diabetic patients. OneWorld will share its
processes and outcomes with the Sarpy Cass Health Department as well as the Douglas County Health Department to promote the Diabetes
Care Management project.

V.F.2.a.ii. | Describe how the CHW will be part of a clinical team and serve as a liaison between the health clinic/heaith system, the patient
and community resources;

Bidder Response:

OneWorld's promotoras will join the multidisciplinary team charged with diabetes management. The team includes medical clinicians, clinical
pharmacists, Diabetes Case Manger, behavioral health therapists and support staff. The promotoras will serve a liaison between
OneWorld’s staff, and minority and other patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher, and community resources including
homeless shelters, food pantries, legal clinics, and employment agencies. The promotoras will communicate with OneWorld's medical
clinicians and support staff at meetings, one-on-one management meetings, and via the Electronic Health Records (HER) system. The
promotoras will communicate with minority patients via telephone, text and e-mail and in person at least monthly. As case managers, the
promotoras will offer ongoing support and build relationships with the minority patients in their care. The promotoras will maintain
relationships with representatives of community agencies that offer resources. The promotoras will document their efforts and measures of
progress in working with staff, minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher. As needed, they will share information to
support efforts to reduce patients’ HbA1c rates. The promotoras may learn about healthy cooking or group exercise classes offered by Sarpy
County community center and then share the dates, locations and costs of the classes with minority patients with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher
as well as medical clinicians who work closely with that patient population.
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V.F.2.a.iii. | Describe how the CHW provide necessary resources to optimize communication and support for diabetic education, compliance
with physician care management and addresses social determinates of health;

Bidder Response:

To optimize communication and support for minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher, OneWorld’'s promotoras will
use monthly telephone calls and messages, text messages, e-mail messages, and face-to-face meetings to gauge whether patients are
complying with individualized education and treatment plans that address social determinants of heath for diabetes patients and their
families. To communicate with patients, OneWorld pays for or provides cell phones for the promotoras and the Minority Health Outreach
Manager. OneWorld also provides laptops or iPads for communication purposes in addition to promotora kits that glucometers and testing
supplies for measuring HBA1c. The promotoras also receive reimbursement for mileage for home visits with diabetic patients. As case
managers, the promotoras will offer support to and build relationships with diabetic patients. The promotoras will answer questions and
provide encouragement to patients. As needed, the promotoras will consult with OneWorld's medical clinicians and other members of the
multidisciplinary team to discuss how to assist patients in managing their diabetes.

V.F.2.a.iv. | Describe how the CHW will meet monthly with the clinical team to discuss patients’ diabetic goals and updates on social
determinates of health impacting patient's management of diabetes and;

Bidder Response:

OneWorld's promotoras will meet monthly at the Livestock Exchange Campus with the multidisciplinary team charged with diabetes
management. The team includes medical clinicians, clinical pharmacists, Diabetes Case Manger, behavioral health therapists and support
staff. The team will allocate part of their monthly meeting to discussing the goals and progress of minority patients from Sarpy County with
an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher. The team will also discuss how social determinants of health impact diabetes management by individual patients
and by the target population from Sarpy County. During their monthly meetings, the clinical team and promotoras will have access to the
OneWorld’s Electronic Health Record (EHR) system to review and add information.

V.F.2.a.v. ] Describe how the CHW will address language and cultural barriers experienced by patients.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld's Community Health Workers known as promotoras will address the language and cultural barriers experienced by minority
patients by communicating in Spanish with patients whose primary language is Spanish. Both promotoras are bilingual and bicultural in
Spanish and English. Other languages will be available by interpretation service by phone or video system.
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V.F.2.b. CHW qualifications

V.F.2.b.i. | Describe how the CHW is a trusted member of the community with a close understanding of the community served

Bidder Response:

OneWorld will utilize Vivian Garcia as Minority Health Outreach Manager, Maria Vargas and Laura Hernandez as Community Health
Promoters, and volunteer promotoras from the Hispanic community for the Diabetes Case Management for Minorities project. They are
trusted advisors who live and work in the communities they serve. Because they belong to the minority population, they facilitate services
and make systems of care approachable for their relatives, neighbors, friends and other community members. Vivian Garcia has lived in
Nebraska since childhood and came to Omaha as a college student. Vivian worked as a certified nursing assistant before earning her
bachelor's degree in public health. Vivian completed training to become a Community Health Worker in 2014. Vivian interned at OneWorld
before joining the staff as the Minority Health Program Coordinator in 2015. She has served as Minority Health Outreach Manager since
2017. Maria Vargas has lived and worked in Omaha since 2002. Maria is well known and trusted in the local Hispanic community as the
result of her on-going work as a health educator and translator at Omaha’s Intercultural Senior Center. Maria has worked as a promotora at
OneWorld with an emphasis on minority populations in Sarpy County since 2016. Laura Hernandez has lived and worked in Omaha since
2011. Maria has earned the trust of the Hispanic community through her employment at OneWorld as a lactation peer counselor from 2012
to 2014 and as a promotora since 2015. Laura also completed the three-year family literacy program offered by OneWorld’s South Omaha
Learning Community Center. Laura is active and well known in the community as a volunteer at Spring Lake Elementary School, South High
School, and Boys Town. On behalf of OneWorld, the minority health staff has educated and screened hundreds of Hispanic individuals from
Douglas and Sarpy Counties.

V.F.2.b.ii. | Describe how the CHW has a thorough understanding of diabetic management.

Bidder Response:

OneWorid's promotoras have gained a thorough understanding of diabetic management through on-going training and employment related
to chronic disease management. Vivian Garcia gained a thorough understanding of diabetic management through her training to become a
Community Health Worker, her experience as Minority Health Program Coordinator, and her role as Minority Health Outreach Manager.
Maria Vargas has worked at OneWorld as a promotora and case manager for patients with chronic disease since 2016. She earned her
bachelor’'s degree in public health at University of Nebraska Omaha in 2015. She also completed public health training and an internship at
the UNMC'’s College of Public Health. Laura Hernandez has worked at OneWorld as a promotora since 2014. She became a lead
promotora in 2015. Laura completed community health worker, community health advocacy and Minority Health Initiative training. All three
attended Centers for Disease Control and Prevention certification class for diabetes management.
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V.F.2.b.iii. | Describe how the CHW is able to provide culturally appropriate health education and information.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld’'s Hispanic Community Health Workers known as promotoras are able to provide culturally appropriate health education and
information to Hispanic patients, because they live and work in the community. The promotoras share many social, cultural, and economic
characteristics with the diabetic patients in their care. The promotoras are first-generation immigrants from Mexico who value hard work and
good health in order to support their families. The promotoras understand that their peers face unique barriers to health care include
language, lack of insurance, immigration status, mistrust, and illiteracy. The promotoras also understand that Hispanics are a diverse ethnic
group that includes many different cultures, races, and nationalities. They consult with co-workers from Central and South America, Puerto
Rico and Cub to modify their education and information. OneWorid’s promotoras borrow from diabetes management curricula tailored to
Hispanic populations. They also utilize educational and promotional materials with content in Spanish as well as English. For other minority
patients who speak languages other than Spanish and English, OneWorld will research cultural differences and adaptations for their diabetes
management practices.

V.F.2.b.iv. | Describe how the CHW is able to address language and cultural barriers.

Bidder Response:

The promotoras are able to address language and cultural barriers for Hispanic patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher by
speaking the same language and sharing the same culture. Both of the Hispanic promotoras are bilingual and bicultural. To address
language barriers, the promotoras communicate with patients in Spanish and English. The promotoras utilize educational and promotional
materials tailored to Hispanic patients. OneWorld creates and purchases materials with content in Spanish and English. In terms of culture,
the promotoras understand that their peers face unique barriers to health care include language, immigration status, mistrust, and illiteracy.
The promotoras also recognize the traditional Hispanic values of family and respect. For minority patients who are not Hispanic, OneWorld's
promotoras will utilize the Language Line operated by Pacific Interpreters, Inc., or via on-line interpretation services to address language
barriers. To overcome cultural barriers, the promotoras will research other cultures. They will collaborate with representatives of agencies
who serve clients from other cultures.
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V.F.2.b.v. | Describe how the CHW is familiar with resources and access to resources to address the social determinates of health that
affect the patient’s ability to manage their diabetes and

Bidder Response:

OneWorld’'s promotoras are familiar with resources that address social determinants of health as the result of the extensive outreach in the
community. For example, the promotoras are familiar with local food pantries and food insecurity because of education and screenings
offered at those locations. Because of their training and work experience, the promotoras specifically understand social determinants that
affect patients’ ability to manage their diabetes. These social determinants include access to local food, economic opportunities including
jobs with living wages and health insurance, health care, transportation, social support, crime, poverty, language/literacy and technology. For
example, the promotoras recognize that diabetic patients in low-income neighborhoods without nearby grocery stores or reliable
transportation may not be able to incorporate heathy, fresh foods into their diets. Instead, they resort to processed foods or fast food. In
addition to food pantries, the promotoras are familiar with community gardens and farmers markets where patients can volunteer or purchase
fresh food including vegetables. In the past, the promotoras organized a Saturday morning walking club that met at OneWorld's Livestock
Exchange Campus in order to provide an opportunity for low-income diabetic patients to engage in physical activity with friends without
having to travel to a gym or purchase a gym membership.

V.F.2.b.vi. | Describe how the CHW is able to communicate the successes, limitations, and barriers faced by the patient in managing their
diabetes with the medical provider.

Bidder Response:

In addition to the monthly meetings of the multidisciplinary team charged with diabetes management, the promotoras will add notes about
diabetic patients’ successes, limitations, and barriers in the Electronic Health Records (HER) system. The promotoras may also
communicate with medical clinicians via e-mail and impromptu meetings before or after patients’ medical appointments. To provide a clear
picture of the successes, limitations, and barriers, the promotoras will communicate details about the patients’ circumstances including
medical and social history.

10
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V.F.3. Demonstrate Expertise and Cultural Competence

V.F.3.a. Complete a Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Service (CLAS) Standards assessment developed by the Nebraska DHHS
Office of Health Disparities and Health Equity within the three (3) months of the start of the project and ensure steps are taken to
provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services to program participants.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld's promotoras, Diabetes Case Manager and Minority Health Outreach Manager will complete the Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Service (CLAS) Standards assessment within the three (3) months of the project's start. OneWorld will ensure that steps are
taken to provide culturally and linguistically appropriate services to minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher.

V.F.3.b. If not already taken within the last two years, ensure the Living Well with Diabetes training is taken by the CHW within the first
three (3) months of the awarded contract or other time period approved by DHHS.
Bidder Response:

OneWorld’s promotoras will re-take the Living Well with Diabetes training within the first three (months of the awarded contract or another
time period approved by DHHS. The promotoras also completed diabetes certification classes approved by the Centers for Disease Control

and Prevention at OneWorld.

V.F.4. ' Addresses Social Determinants of Health

V.F4.a. Provide value added services that will be used to address the social determinants such as transportation, translation, day care,
or other needs that will assist with meeting the program outcomes. List each value added services. For each value added
service identify the following. Additional value added services can be added for more than four value added services.

What service will be offered?

Bidder Response:

Value | Transportation

Added | Who will be offered the service?

Service 1| Bidder Response:

Minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher who lack access to public transportation or reliable private
transportation to appointments at the Livestock Exchange Campus

11
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When and/or how often will the services be needed or offered?

Bidder Response:

OneWorld operates two vans to transport patients to and from the Livestock Exchange Campus during clinic hours.

What service will be offered?

Bidder Response:

Translation

Who will be offered the service?

Bidder Response:

X:cliﬁi Minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher who primary language is not English
SeIge 2 When and/or how often will the services be needed or offered?
Bidder Response:
For minority patients whose primary language is Spanish, OneWorld's promotoras and Diabetes Case Manager will speak
Spanish when providing diabetes case management. For minority patients whose primary language is not Spanish or English,
OneWorld’s promotoras will utilize interpretation services via a Language Line operated by Pacific Interpreters, Inc.
What service will be offered?
Bidder Response:
Value [ Financial assistance and Medicaid enroliment assistance
Added | Who will be offered the service?
Service 3| Bidder Response:

Minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher who cannot afford private health insurance and do not
qualify for Medicaid, Medicare, and other coverage

12
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When and/or how often will the services be needed or offered?

Bidder Response:

Before an appointment with a medical clinician, patients without private health insurance who are not enrolled in Medicaid,
Medicare, and the Insurance Marketplace meet with one of OneWorld's patient financial advocates. The patient financial
advocate uses a patient’s tax return from the previous year or proof of income from one month to determine whether the patient
qualifies for discounted fees on OneWorld’s sliding fee scale. Patients may provide their financial information at the time of the
medical appointment, or they may return for a second meeting. The patient financial advocate and patient will work out a
payment arrangement. If the patient also qualifies for Medicaid or Medicare, the patient financial advocate will assist the patient
with enrollment for those benefits. After a patient financial advocate determines where a patient falls on OneWorld's sliding fee
scale, the patient does not have to re-calculate that amount for two years.

Value
Added
Service 4

What service will be offered?

Bidder Response:

Affordable medications at OneWorld's pharmacy

Who will be offered the service?

Bidder Response:

All patients including minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbA1c of 6.5 or higher

When and/or how often will the services be needed or offered?

Bidder Response:

OneWorld’s pharmacy at the Livestock Exchange Campus offers competitive prices for brand-name and generic prescriptions
and over-the-counter medicines. Filling prescriptions at OneWorld costs 20% - 50% less than other pharmacies on average.
OneWorld also offers medication assistance program (MAP) for low-income patients and patients chronic diseases. OneWorld
accepts private insurance, Medicaid and Medicare, but coverage is not required. OneWorld's pharmacy is open to the public.
The pharmacy is open from 8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. from Monday through Friday and from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Saturday.

13
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V.G Deliverables

V.G.1. Describe how the project will ensure all of the data and reporting elements (see Section V.H.1.) will be collected.

Bidder Response:

OneWorld will work with Heartland Community Health Network that developed its Electronic Health Records (EHR) system known as
NextGen to collect the required data and prepare the required reports. OneWorld and Heartland Community Health Network share office
space at the Livestock Exchange Campus. OneWorld routinely asks staff of Heartland Community Health Network for assistance in
modifying NextGen to collect, display, or report specific data.
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December 2, 2019

State of Nebraska

State Purchasing Bureau

ATTN: Dianna Gilliland and Nancy Storant
1526 K Street, Suite 130

Lincoln, NE 68508

Dear Ms. Gilliland and Ms. Storant;

Please accept this statement of OneWorld’s commitment of our medical clinicians to
refer minority patients from Sarpy County with an HbAlc of 6.5 or higher for diabetic case
management and the commitment of OneWorld’s clinical team charged with diabetes
management to communicate monthly with the Hispanic Community Health Workers known as
promotoras.

OneWorld will provide effective diabetes management services that are person-centered
and culturally responsive to patient’s medical and social needs in order to support minority
patients from Sarpy County in reducing their HbAlc rates. Please contact me with any questions
about our proposal.

Sincergly, .

<y g
S, Aol
Andrea M. Skolkin
Chief Executive Officer
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